
 

 

 
Town Clerk                 15 Station Road 
Les Trigg                 STONE 
                  ST15 8JP 
Tel: 01785 619740        
Email: clerk@stonetowncouncil.gov.uk           25 June 2019
    
   
Dear Councillor, 

 
A meeting of the GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE will be held in the Council Chamber at 15 
Station Road, Stone, on TUESDAY 2 JULY 2019 at 7:05pm, or on the rising of the Council Meeting, if 
later.   
 
I trust you will be able to attend. 
 
 
 
 

Les Trigg 
Town Clerk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3.  Requests for Dispensations Received 
 

4. 
 

To receive the report of the County Councillors 
 

- County Councillor Mrs J. Hood 
- County Councillor I. Parry 

 
5. Representations from Members of the Public 

To consider representations from members of the public on items to be considered at this 
meeting, in accordance with the Council’s scheme of public participation. 
 

6. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
To approve the minutes of the last meeting of the General Purposes Committee on 4 June 
2019. 

 
 



 

 

7. Minutes of Sub-Committees 
 

a) Tourism & Town Promotion Sub-Committee held on 18 June 2019, Minute 
Numbers TTP20/001 – TTP20/011 (attached) 
i. To consider the draft minutes 
ii. To consider the Recommendations contained in Minute Numbers 

TTP20/009 and TTP20/010   
 

b) Environment Sub-Committee held on 18 June 2019, Minute Numbers ENV20/001 
– ENV20/008 (attached) 
i. To consider the draft minutes 

 
c) Mayor’s Charity Sub-Committee held on 18 June 2019, Minute Numbers 

MC20/001 – MC20/004 (attached) 
i.  To consider the draft minutes 

 
8. To consider the following requests for grants from local organisations: 

 
- 1st Stone Cubs 
- 2352 (Stone Sqn) ATC 
- Crossings Community Centre 
- Crown Wharf Theatre Company 
- Douglas Macmillan Hospice 
- 1st Oulton Scout Group 
- Scout & Guide Band 
- STING 
- Stone Community Hub 
- Stone Lions Club 
- Stone RUFC (Juniors) 

 
9. 
 

Redundant Bus Shelters 
 
To consider any action that the Committee may wish to take in respect of bus shelters on 
routes where bus services have been withdrawn.  This includes Manor Rise, St Vincent’s 
Road and Whitemill Lane. 
 

10. Actions from Annual Public Meeting 
 
To consider any necessary actions in response to matters raised by residents at the Annual 
Public Meeting on 16 April, Minute Number APM19/006 (copy attached): 
 

- Improving access to primary care facilities 
- Bus stop in poor condition outside Weatherspoon 
- Installation of ‘For Sale’ signs at the entrance to Trent Close 
- Poor Condition of the ‘Old Bowling Green’ and ‘The Maltings’ 

 
11. Highways Grounds Maintenance 

 
To consider the Town Council’s approach to currently unmaintained areas of Highways’ 
grounds. 
 

12. Working Groups – Terms of Reference 
 
To consider the attached draft Terms of Reference for all Town Council working groups. 



 

 

 
13. 
 
 

HS2 Phase 2A (West Midlands to Crewe) Community and Business Funds 
 
To consider an email (attached) from HS2 with information about funding opportunities 
dedicated to communities and businesses disrupted by the construction of Phase 2a. 
 

14. Draft Revised Statement of Community Involvement 
 
To consider a Staffordshire County Council consultation on its draft revised Statement of 
Community Involvement (SCI) which explains how people and organisations will be 
consulted with, when preparing planning policies or processing planning applications.  
 
An email from the Senior Planning Officer is attached to the agenda.  
 
The draft revised Statement of Community Involvement (June 2019) and Table of 
Revisions to the Statement of Community Involvement (June 2019) are attached to the 
electronic version of the agenda. 
 

15. Members Motion under Standing Order 4 
 

Councillor Kenney 
‘Next year's early May bank holiday will be moved back by four days for the whole of the 

UK to coincide with the 75th anniversary of VE Day. 

May Day is traditionally held on a Monday but will be put back to Friday 8 May 2020. 

VE Day, or Victory in Europe Day, marks the day towards the end of World War Two when 

fighting against Nazi Germany came to an end in Europe. 

The holiday will form part of a three-day weekend of commemorative events. 

I propose that Stone Town Council places a budget of £4,000 in next year’s finances to 

cover the costs of the events over the commemorative VE weekend and also forms a 

working group to organise such events’. 

16. Non-Cheque Payments 
 
To receive a list of non-cheque payments made by the Council during the period 1 May to 
31 May 2019 (attached).  
 

17. Update from Working Groups: 
 

a) Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group 
b) Stone Area Parish Liaison Group  
c) Traffic Management in High Street Working Group 

 
18. To receive reports from Town Councillors on attendance at meetings of local 

organisations and outside bodies as a representative of the Town Council 
 
Stone ATC – Mayor & J. Davies  
Age Concern Stone & District – Cllrs: T. Adamson & C. Thornicroft 
Stafford & Stone Access Group – Cllr T. Kelt 
Stone Common Plot Trustees – Cllrs: Mrs J. Hood, R. Kenney & T. Adamson 
Stone Community Hub Liaison Group – Cllrs: Mrs J. Hood, M. Hatton & J. Powell  



 

 

SPCA Executive Committee – Cllr M. Green  
 

19. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
To resolve, pursuant to the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, that the 
Public and Press be excluded from the meeting whilst the next items of business are 
discussed on the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to public interest by reason of 
the confidential nature of the debate. 
 

20. Confidential Minutes 
 
To approve the confidential minutes of the meeting of the General Purposes Committee 
on 4 June 2019. 
 

21. Staffing Matters 
 
To consider the confidential report of the Town Clerk (attached). 
 

 
 
 
Members of the Public are welcome to attend the General Purposes Committee Meeting as 
observers 
 
 



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  They 
are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

Stone Town Council – General Purposes Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held in the Council Chamber  
at 15 Station Road, Stone, on Tuesday 4 June 2019 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT: 

Councillor R. Kenney in the Chair, and  
Councillors: T. Adamson, K. Argyle, A. Best, Mrs A. Burgess, J. Davies, Mrs L. Davies,  
Mrs K. Dawson, M. Green M. Hatton, J. Hickling, Mrs J. Hood, T. Kelt, P. Leason,  
J. Powell, C. Thornicroft and R. Townsend  
 
Councillor: I. Fordham  
 

  
GP20/021 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor I. Fordham 
 

GP20/022 Declarations of Interests  
 
Councillor P. Leason declared a personal interest in item 10 (Minute Number 
GP19/030)  - Members Motion under Standing Order 4 
 

GP20/023 
 

Requests for Dispensations 
 
None 
 

GP20/024 
 

To receive the report of the County Councillors 
 
County Councillor Mrs J. Hood 
Councillor Mrs Hood informed the Committee that she was delighted to be able to 
support, through her Staffordshire Local Community Fund allocation, an event that 
the Stafford Branch of SSAFA (originally the Soldiers’ and Sailors’ Families 
Association,  the oldest military charity in the UK), will be holding in September, at 
the Crown Hotel. The event will bring military organisations together to showcase 
their work and publicise the services available to ex-military personnel who need 
assistance. She said this will be a special day for us all and urged people to go 
along to show their support. 
 
County Councillor I. Parry 
Councillor Parry was not in attendance at the meeting. 
 

GP20/025 
 

Representations from Members of the Public 
 
 None 
 

GP20/026 
 

Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the minutes of the General Purposes Committee Meeting held on the 
21 May 2019 (Minute Numbers GP20/001 – GP20/020), be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.   



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  They 
are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

GP20/027 
 
 

Minutes of Sub-Committees 
 
There were no minutes for consideration 
 

GP20/028 Review of Standing Orders  
 
The Committee undertook to review the Council’s Standing Orders* which had 
been presented to the previous meeting of the Committee and circulated 
electronically with the agenda for the meeting. The document had been reviewed 
by the Town Clerk, who had proposed changes to section 13 to reflect changes in 
the consideration of meeting minutes.  
 
RESOLVED: That the circulated Standing Orders for 2019-20 be approved without 
amendment.   
 

GP20/029 Review of Financial Regulations 
 

The Committee undertook to review the Council’s Financial Regulations* which 
had been presented to the previous meeting of the Committee and circulated 
electronically with the agenda for the meeting. The document had been reviewed 
by the Town Clerk, who proposed changes to section 5 to reflect the move to 
setting up direct debits online, rather than by paper.  Consideration had also been 
given to any changes which may be needed as a result of the recent decision to 
accept debit and credit cards for payments to the Council, but none were required. 
 
RESOLVED: That the circulated Financial Regulations for 2019-20 be approved 
without amendment.   
 

GP20/030 Members Motion under Standing Order 4 
 

Councillor Davies 
At the General Purposes Meeting held on 4 July 2017 it was resolved at Minute 
18/035 to award a grant of £300 to The Burma Star Association and to make the 
event part of the Town Council’s budget during 2019-20 and onwards. 

 
There is currently a lack of clarity around the responsibility for arranging this event 
following the demise of the Women’s Section of the Royal British Legion.  I propose 
that the Council revokes the above decision and considers the matter of grant 
payment again once it is clear which organisation is officially responsible for the VJ-
Day Commemoration arrangements. 
 
Councillor Davies amended his proposal at the meeting to replace the final 
sentence with ‘I propose that for 2019 the Town Clerk is authorised to use his 
discretion as to who the recipient of the payment should be’. 
 
RESOLVED: That the amended proposal be supported.  
 

GP20/031 Non-Cheque Payments 
 
RESOLVED: To note the list* of non-cheque payments made by the Council during 
the period 1 April to 30 April 2019.  
 
 
 



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  They 
are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

GP20/032 Update from Working Groups: 
 
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group 
The Chairman of the Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group, Councillor Mrs Hood, 
informed the Committee that the Examiner had agreed to look at all Green Spaces 
designated within the Draft Stone Neighbourhood Plan and would report back to 
Stafford Borough Council and Stone Town Council his observations.   
 
Stone Area Parish Liaison Group 
Councillor Davies advised the Committee that a meeting of Stone Area Parish 
Liaison Group would be held this month.    
 
Traffic Management in High Street Working Group 
 
Councillor Kenney reported that traffic and parking issues in the High Street are 
ongoing and that assistance had been requested from the County and Borough 
Councils. The Highway’s Department is considering enforcement measures against 
motorists using the High Street as a through route, and at changing the sequencing 
of the traffic lights at its exit point. These courses of action haven’t yet been 
implemented. 
 

GP20/033 To receive reports from Town Councillors on attendance at meetings of local 
organisations and outside bodies as a representative of the Town Council 
 
Stone ATC 
Councillor Davies advised that a meeting of Stone ATC would be taking place 
tomorrow.     
 
Age Concern Stone & District 
It was reported that no meeting had taken place.   
 
Stafford & Stone Access Group  
Councillor T. Kelt advised that a meeting would be taking place in two weeks.      
 
Stone Common Plot Trustees 
It was reported that a meeting was coming up soon.      
 
Stone Community Hub Liaison Group  
It was reported that no meeting had taken place.   
 
SPCA Executive Committee 
Councillor M. Green advised that the next meeting was in September.  
 
The meeting was suspended to enable the Planning Committee and Confidential 
item on the Town Council meeting to take place.  The Committee was then 
reconvened for the confidential item on the agenda.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  They 
are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

GP20/034 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
To resolve, pursuant to the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, that 
the Public and Press be excluded from the meeting whilst the next items of 
business are discussed on the grounds that publicity would be prejudicial to 
public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the debate 
 
RESOLVED: To exclude the Press and Public from the next item of business.  
 

GP20/035 Confidential Minutes 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Confidential Minutes of the General Purposes Committee Meeting held 
on the 9 April 2019 (Minute Numbers C19/203 and C19/218), be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN MAYOR 



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  
They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

 

Stone Town Council – Tourism & Town Promotion 
 Sub-Committee 

 
Minutes of the Meeting held in the Council Chamber  
at 15 Station Road, Stone, on Tuesday 18 June 2019 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor Mrs J. Hood in the Chair and  
Councillors: T. Adamson, A. Best, J. Davies, M. Green, R. Kenney, P. Leason and  
J. Powell   
  
By Chairman’s invitation:  Mrs L. Davies 
 
Councillors: I. Fordham and C. Thornicroft 

 
TTP20/001 Apologies 

 
Councillors: I. Fordham and C. Thornicroft 
 

TTP20/002 Declarations of Interest and Requests for Dispensation 
 
None received 
 

TTP20/003 Representations from Members of the Public 
 
None 
 

TTP20/004 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
That the minutes of the Tourism & Town Promotion Sub-Committee meeting 
held on the 19 March 2019 (Minute Numbers TTP19/027 – TTP19/033), be signed 
by the Chairman as a correct record.  
 

TTP20/005 Membership of Working Groups  
 
RESOLVED: To confirm membership of the following Working Groups: 
 
Town Centre Appearance and Environment Working Group 
Councillors: I. Fordham, M. Green, Mrs J. Hood, T. Kelt, R. Kenney, J. Powell 
Co-opted Councillor Member: Mrs A. Burgess  
 
Town Centre Events and Attractions Working Group 
Councillors: A. Best, T. Adamson, J. Davies, I. Fordham, M. Green, Mrs J. Hood,  
R. Kenney, J. Powell 
Co-opted non councillor Member: A. Hollinshead 
 



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  
They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

 

‘Town Centre Partnership’ 
Councillors: I Fordham, Mrs J. Hood, R. Kenney 
 

TTP20/006 
 
 
 

Renewal of Advertising Boards  
 
The Sub-Committee considered the replacement of advertising boards for the 
surrounding areas of the town including: Craft Market, Stone Markets, Regional 
winner of Gold in Bloom, National winners silver gilt RHS and Heart of England in 
Bloom.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Town Centre Events and Attractions Working Group is asked 
to consider the type, style and location of new advertising boards recommended 
for installation in the town, and that the Group reports its findings back to the 
Sub-Committee. 
 

TTP20/007 
 
 

Advertising Upcoming Events 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the best methods for advertising upcoming 
events and attractions in the town.  
 
RESOLVED: That the Town Centre Events and Attractions Working Group is asked 
to consider the best methods for advertising upcoming events and that the 
Group reports its findings back to the Sub-Committee.  
 

TTP20/008 Calendar of Events 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the calendar of events for 2019* which the Chairman, 
Councillor Mrs Hood said was ambitious and demonstrated the tremendous 
community spirit that was evident in Stone. The calendar had been issued later 
than planned but a number of events had needed to be confirmed. 
 
She advised that the Sportive Cycling event in September had been cancelled 
(although booked for next year) and as a consequence the Florence Brass Band 
would be playing in Stonefield Park rather than Market Square on 29 September. 
 
Councillor Mrs Hood, thanked those involved (which included independent 
organisations) who were working hard to bring people into the town to boost the 
local economy. There are a variety of large and small events listed, all of which 
will be free and many of them family orientated.  
 
The programme of events for next year has already been started and people are 
invited to submit their ideas/plans. 
 

TTP20/009 Letter from President of Twinning Association and Mayor of Bagnacavallo 
 
The Chairman advised that she would be taking item 9 and 10 on the agenda 
together. 
 



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  
They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

 

The Sub-Committee considered a letter from the President of the Twinning 
Association and Mayor of Bagnacavallo (which had been circulated with the 
agenda for the meeting) informing the Town Council of the activities that 
Bagnacavallo are involved in during 2019. The letter also included an invitation 
for Stone to join them in celebrating the 15th anniversary of the two towns’ 
friendship and to work with the twinning committees to strengthen their bonds 
in the future. 
 
The letter had been held over from the last meeting of the Sub-Committee to 
enable consideration by the new Council (after the parish elections in May 2019) 
when fresh talks could take place with the Mayor of Bagnacavallo and the 
twinning committees.  
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Town Clerk is asked to write to the Friends of 
Bagnacavallo (UK based), inviting representatives to attend a special meeting of 
the General Purposes Committee to discuss the friendship agreement.  
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Town Council’s invitation to join Bagnacavallo in 
celebrating the 15th anniversary of the friendship, be considered after this 
meeting.      
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Town Clerk writes to the Mayor of Bagnacavallo and 
President of the Twinning Association thanking them for their kind invitation. 
 

TTP20/010 Members Motions Under Standing Order 4 

 

Councillor J. Davies 

I’d like to initiate a review of the current situation regarding car parking in the 

town in the light of concerns regarding the negative impact on Town businesses 

and attractiveness caused by the operation of the car parks managed by Smart 

Parking, and the letter recently received from Stafford Borough Council (SBC) in 

reply to the Town Council’s request for information on the money received by SBC 

since they took over the management of the Crown Street and Christchurch Way 

car parks. 

 

The Sub-Committee discussed parking provision in the town, its adequacy and its 
management, particularly with regard to Smart Parking Ltd, which manages the 
private car parks at the rear of B & M store and the rear of the Crown Hotel.  
 
Large numbers of people have come forward with complaints that they have 
received parking enforcement notices in unfair circumstances when visiting the 
town.    
 
The Sub-Committee expressed its concern about this matter due to the personal 
anguish the fines are causing, and the significant negative effect these actions are 
having on trade in the High Street and reputation of Stone in the minds of 
tourists and visitors.      
  



 

* Items marked with an asterisk refer to reports or papers circulated with the agenda or distributed at the meeting.  
They are attached as an appendix to the signed copy of the Council minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDED: That the Town Clerk is asked to write to all stakeholders 
connected with Smart Parking run car parks, to include Smart Parking, the owner 
of the land on which the car parks are sited, and B & M store; to express the 
Town Council’s concerns about the negative impact that mass, allegedly unfair 
parking enforcement, is having on Stone town.    
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Town Clerk is asked to write to Stafford Borough 
Council to request information that is available on income received from car 
parks at Crown Street, Westbridge Park and Christchurch Way.   
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Town Clerk issues a press release with information 
and a map detailing the parking facilities that are available in Stone.   
 
This information should also be published on the Town Council’s website.  
 

TTP20/011 
 
 
 

Reports from Working Groups 
 
To receive a report from the Chairman of the Sub-Committee and working 
groups: 
 
Town Centre Appearance and Environment Working Group 
 
Councillor Kenney said that he had no new information to report on the work of 
the Appearance and Environment Working Group, since the last meeting of the 
Sub-Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: To note the progress report on the work of the group. 
 
Town Centre Events and Attractions Working Group 
 
Councillor Mrs J. Hood updated the Sub-Committee on the work of the Town 
Centre Events and Attractions Working Group. 
 
She reported that the first Late Night Shopping/Street Food Event held on 8 May 
had been fabulously successful with lots of additional trade being brought into 
the town. She hopes the shops get behind this new regular event with the next 
one being held on Wednesday 26 June. 
 
 RESOLVED: To note the progress report on the work of the group. 
 
‘Town Centre Partnership’ 
 
Councillor Kenney reported that the Traders Group had not had a meeting since 
finalisation of the calendar of events. 
 
RESOLVED: To note the progress report on the work of the group.  

 
Town Mayor 



 

 

Stone Town Council – Environment Sub-Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held in the Council Chamber  
at 15 Station Road, Stone, on Tuesday 18 June 2019 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor P. Leason in the Chair and 
Councillors: T. Adamson, K. Argyle, Mrs A. Burgess, M. Green, M. Hatton, T. Kelt, 
R. Kenney,  J. Powell and R. Townsend  
 
By Chairman’s invitation: Mrs J. Hood 
 
There were no Councillors absent 

 
ENV20/001 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies.  
 

ENV20/002 Declarations of Interest and Requests for Dispensations 
 
None received 
 

ENV20/003 Representations from Members of the Public 
 
None  
 

ENV20/004 
 
 

Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
That the minutes of the Environment Sub-Committee meeting held on the 19 
March 2019 (Minute Numbers ENV19/015 – ENV19/019), be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.  
 

ENV20/005 Membership of Working Groups  
 
RESOLVED: To confirm membership of the following Working Groups: 
 
Single Use Plastics and Environmental Issues Working Group 
Councillors: T. Adamson, Mrs A. Burgess, M. Green, M. Hatton, T. Kelt, P. Leason, 
R. Townsend 
Co-opted non-Councillor Member: Mrs T. Lindop 
 

ENV20/006 Members Motions Under Standing Order 4 
 
Councillor T. Adamson 
Stone Town Council should declare a climate emergency in common with an 
increasing number of other councils throughout the country.  We have 12 years 
to act to reduce the effects of climate change and as a Town Council we need to 



 

 

be clear that we want to address this emergency. 
  

It is proposed that the Town Council: 
 

1.  Publicly declares a climate emergency. 

2.  Sets a target that Stone should become carbon neutral by 2030.  

3.  Assigns a climate emergency working group reporting to the 
Environment Sub-Committee.  This group should co-opt members to 
ensure that it represents a cross section of the community. It should look 
at all aspects of how Stone could become carbon neutral. 

4. Puts pressure on the Borough and County Councils to also declare a 
climate emergency. 

5. Puts environmental impact as a higher priority in making decisions and 
considers how its decisions impact the goal of carbon neutrality. 

 
In proposing the above motion, Councillor Adamson expressed his vision that a 
climate crisis action plan be devised within a working group consisting of co-
opted members appointed from a cross section of the community, incorporating 
all age ranges.  
 
The Sub-Committee thanked Councillor Adamson for his briefing, but recognised 
that the subject matter was complex and raised concerns about Members being 
well enough equipped with knowledge of the subject matter to be able to 
consider his proposal at this meeting.  It was considered that further 
investigation was required, including whether the cost implications of his 
proposal would be achievable within the constraints of the Town Council’s 
budget (present and future).  
 
RESOLVED: That the Single Use Plastics and Environmental Issues Working Group 
is asked to consider Councillor Adamson’s proposal and that its findings are 
reported back to the Environment Sub-Committee. 
 

ENV20/007 Updates 
 
To consider updates on matters from previous Minutes: 
 

a) Leaflet on the Meadow 
 
Minute Number ENV19/005 & ENV19/018: 
That the costs of producing an information leaflet be investigated by 
Councillor Leason, and the findings reported back to a future meeting of 
the Sub-Committee 
 
The Chairman advised the Sub-Committee that the leaflet illustrating 
flora and fauna on Crown Meadow was making progress. A second 
leaflet featuring Spring and Summer was also to be planned.   
 
 

 



 

 

b) Community Planting Exercise 
 
Minute Number ENV19/012 & ENV19/018: 
That a community planting exercise is considered for the planting of new 
wild flowers on Crown Meadow. 
 
The Chairman informed the Sub-Committee that he would like to 
arrange an on-site meeting with Sub-Committee members and the 
Grounds Maintenance Contractor to discuss the execution of a 
community planting exercise on Crown Meadow. The findings from this 
meeting would be reported back to the next meeting of the Sub-
Committee.  

 
c) Tree & Hedge Planting – Charter for Trees Campaign 

 
Minute Number ENV19/013 & ENV19/018: 
That the location identified in Crown Meadow is recommended for tree 
planting and that this is undertaken through a community tree planting 
project 
 
The Chairman informed the Sub-Committee that he would like to 
arrange an on-site meeting with Sub-Committee members and the 
Grounds Maintenance Contractor to discuss the execution of tree and 
hedge planting on Crown Meadow. The findings from this meeting would 
be reported back to the next meeting of the Sub-Committee.  
 
It was suggested that an arboricultural officer/tree officer be invited to 
the next meeting.  
 
The Chairman advised that he would be setting a schedule of dates for 
future meetings. 

 
RESOLVED: To note the updates on matters brought forward from previous 
Minutes. 
 

ENV20/008 Reports from Working Groups 
 
To receive a report from the Chairman of the Sub-Committee and working 
groups: 
 
Plastic Free Community & Environmental Issues Working Group 
 
The Chairman advised the Sub-Committee that no Working Group meeting had 
been held.  
 
RESOLVED: To note the progress report on the work of the group.   
 

 
Town Mayor 



 

 

 

Stone Town Council – Mayor’s Charity Sub-Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held in the Council Chamber at  
15 Station Road, Stone, on Tuesday 18 June 2019 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor M. Green in the Chair and 
Councillors: T. Adamson, J. Davies, Mrs L. Davies, M. Hatton, Mrs J. Hood and  
J. Powell 
 
The Town Mayor for the year 2018-19, Mrs Kristan Green, was also in attendance 
at the meeting 
 
There were no Councillors absent 
 

  
MC20/001 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies 
 

MC20/002 Declarations of Interest 
 
None 
 

MC20/003 Mayor 2018-19 – Report of final amounts donated to the Mayor’s Charities 
 
The Chairman invited the Mayor for 2018-19, Mrs Kristan Green, to give a verbal 
report on the total value raised for the Mayor’s Charities, and its distribution 
between the charities: 
 
 1st Stone Scout Group 
Age Concern 
STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic Independent Neurological Group) 
 
During the Mayoral year, a total sum of £2,593.55 was raised. This includes 
£440.08 raised at the street collection (which has already been paid out) and a 
sum of £2,153.47 which is still to be distributed.  
 
RESOLVED: That the total value raised for the Mayor’s Charities during 2018-19 of 
£2,593.55, is apportioned equally between the Mayor’s three charities.   
 

MC20/004 Mayor 2019-20 – To confirm the charities for the year 
 
The Chairman, Councillor M. Green, stated that the Mayor’s chosen charity for the 
year 2019-2020 would be: 



 

 

 
Crown wharf Theatre Company 
 
RESOLVED: To support the Mayor’s proposed charity.  
 

 
 
 
 

Town Mayor 
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Benefits to Stone residents: 
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Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known): 

Is this an "exceptional" request (see notes)? If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: 

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding: 
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qz:C)(\./\ LO\.J\,S-Y '-\ Co UN C..,\ LLcR IJ \ LL H Cb O TD PU (L C)-t ~ E 

eoo~N G;.- eQ\J \ PM-&.sr-. 

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable): 
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lSt Stone Scouts P&L 2018-19 

2018-2019 Prv Year 

Income 

Subscriptions 6297.00 4850.00 

Gift Aid 1127.62 888.89 

Fund Raising 100.00 0.00 

Income for Events 0.00 285.00 

Hire of HQ 1325.00 1350.00 

Grants & Donations 1223.88 708.00 

Transfer from Roof Repair Reserve 0.00 21427.46 

Miscellaneous Income 0.00 0.00 

10,073.50 29,509.35 

Expenditure 

Programme Activities 614.06 473.31 

Badges & Uniform 291.22 307.96 

Capitation 1955.70 1902.70 

Event Costs 0.00 286.00 

HQ Costs 1971.64 983.96 

Equipment Purchase & Maintenance 4.99 0.00 

Management & Administration 179.61 117.45 

Roof Repairs 0.00 30874.50 

Miscellaneous Costs 109.35 0.00 

5,126.57 34,945.88 

Surplus/(Deficit) 4,946.93 -5,436.53 

Notes 

1 HQ Income: Town Band £300, Scout Band £400, District £300, Bonfire etc £325 

i Grants from Staffs CC, Copper Jar, Bonfire & £400 from Stone Rotary for Water Heaters 

3 HQ Expenses: Gas £740, Electric £300, Repairs etc £930 

lSt Stone Scouts Balance Sheet 2018-19 

2018-2019 Prv Year 

Assets 

Cash in Bank 5185.13 6760.54 

Floats & Cash/Chqs in Hand 2390.92 707.99 

Gas Oil Stock 700.00 700.00 

Other Assets 0.00 0.00 

Debtors 1547.42 888.25 

9823.47 9056.78 

Liabilities 

Creditors 953.48 5083.72 

953.48 5083.72 

Total Assets less Liabilities 8869.99 3973.06 

Capital & Reserves 

Roof Repair Reserve 0.00 0.00 

Other Reserved Capital 170.63 220.63 

Unreserved Capital 3752.43 9188.96 
P&LAccount 4946.93 -5436.53 

8869.99 3973.06 

Notes: 

T. Coe May 2019 

Notes 

Note 1 

Note 2 

Note3 

Gift Aid & Rotary Donation 

Owed for Water Heaters & Gas Delivery 

Cubs Nights away & OSM donation 
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Name of organisation: 
2352 (Stone) Squadron Air Cadets 
 

Purpose of organisation: 
Youth organisation which benefits both young people and the wider community with a range of activities, qualifications 
and support to the community at events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amount of grant requested: 
 
£500 
 

Total cost of project (if appropriate):  In the region of £700 

Reason for grant request: Sign writing and decor for squadron minibus purchased last year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Application for 

Grant Aid 
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Benefits to Stone residents: 
2352 have a large presence in Stone, regularly supporting both Stone and the outlying villages with event support and 
joining parades. We have strong links with Stone RAFA and Stone has it’s own Mayors cadet. Since losing our last 
minibus we are trying to obtain funds to sign write to make this bus noticeable, to grow our presence and support in 
and to the town. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known): We are looking at sponsored events 
to obtain further funds after our busy summer period is over 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Is this an “exceptional” request (see notes)?  If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding: No grant applied for in 2018. In 
2017 we were kindly given £484.98 for an event shelter which was used the past 2 years at Stone festival and seen at 
both squadron and wing events 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

telephone 01785 619740. 



Treasurer’s Report -                    Date: 1st April 2019
OUT IN

Last Statement Closed At 4549.02

Apr-18

SUBS 335 BT

Owen - Easter Camp 40 BT

J Rothwell Expenses - 656.24 136

Disco £180

Lanyards 39.95

Trophies £30 & £35.74

!st Aid £50

ID Badges £29.15

Sqn T.Shirts £200.10

Fuel £60

Paper/Binbags/Toilet Roll £11.40

Steve Cahill Expenses 167.43 137

Printer £130

Fuel £30

Postage £7.40

British Telecom 62.52 DD

Crockawhile Glasses Dinining in 49.4 129

Community Centre - Dining In 263 131

Plyvine Catering - Dining In 134

BALANCE END OF APRIL: £2,236.41

May-19

SUBS 287.5 BT

Knight - Stem Camp 30 BT

Kirby - Valley Camp 70 BT

Camp Payments 550 C/CH

British Telecom 62.52 DD

Refund for Rachel Smith 250 140

Steve Cahill Expenses 22.4 139

BALANCE END OF MAY: £2,828.99

Jun-19

SUBS - so Far 212.5

Staffs Wing - RAF Valley Camp 210

KD Insurance - minibus 634.38

Staffs Wing - STEM Camp 180

Levy 557.34

Staffs Wing - Swynny Camp 20

Hilderstone Motors - Minibus MOT 372.5

Steve Cahill - Fuel/Postage 78.42

Compressed Air/JP 10.16

Amount in Bank at 23rd June £926.17

2352(Stone) Squadron
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Grant Aid 
Stone 
own Council 
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-t- , . \.-VUAVdA vi-f-"Tlt~Q?.ssifft.11 
d, e., Cr tJ rs In q Corn mu ru ty Ce n /y~ P fl, f'ro f '¢:.i s 11:f_q B(l)o ii) 

Purpose of organisation: 
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Benefits to Stone residents: 
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\mpn>vetl spo t"-hV\g ·fn:u (chv t-~up~(-
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Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known): 

Is this an "exceptional" request (see notes)? If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: 

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding: 

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable): 

5tt o~cJ~ ~ ~ eA!-~ 
Clf v JL DO\wSoY\ 
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12th June 2019 

To Whom It May Concern, 

I fully support this application for sports equipment. I have been in talks with 
Katie about the possibility of starting a youth club at The Crossing and this 
equipment would be fantastic for those who use the centre, now and in the 
future. The Crossing provides a fantastic meeting space for local families, 
supports the local community and is highly valued by its users. 

Best wishes, 

Cllr. Mrs K Dawson 



TOTAL (CONSOLIDATED) 

Actual for Budget for Actual year Budget yeor Projected for Budget for 

ALL SUMMARIES month month to date to date year year 

December December Jan-Dec Jan-Dec Jan-Dec Jan-Dec 

Giving - regular £31,051 £32 528 £350 830 £390337 £350,830 £390,337 
Giving - loose bag £1.862 £2,532 £30 455 £33 388 £30 455 £33 388 
Giving - one-offs £1 000+ £4080 £4833 £33 130 £58000 £33 130 £58000 
Givini,: - gift aid £8624 £9354 £93 306 £112,242 £93 306 £112,242 
Sundrv income £1384 £885 £9090 £10625 £9090 £10 625 
Cafe+Catering income £6432 £7894 £90 098 £94 725 £90098 £94 725 
Room bookings income £467 £3150 £34 606 £37 805 £34 606 £37,805 
Gifts from Mission Partners - - £5 581 £5500 £5 581 £5500 
Other Event Income - £21 - £250 - £250 
Community Outreach £683 - £6,568 £4,700 £6,568 £4,700 
CYF Income £970 £333 £8,736 £4,000 £8,736 £4,000 
Grant Income £1,950 £1,950 £24,359 £24,400 £24,359 £24,400 
Library income £446 £208 £4,021 £2,500 £4,021 £2,500 
Resources sales - - £659 - £659 -

Leadership School - - £8,114 £6,650 £8,114 £6,650 
Thank Offering - £20,040 - £20,040 -

Released from Network Pot £354 £354 £4244 £4 244 £4,244 £4 244 
Feasibilitv Studv - - - - - -

Release of Designated/Allocated Funds £2 081 £107 £19 897 £14 288 £19 897 £14,288 
Transfers in from other budgets £1955 £16035 £182 214 £192 278 £182 214 £192,278 
Prior Year Adjustment - - - - - -

- - - - - -

TOTAL INCOME £60,339 £80,186 £925,948 £995,932 £925,948 £995,932 

Salaries+Wages £38,960 £40,924 £453,849 £468,270 £453,849 £468,270 
Ministers+Staff training £602 £667 £8,647 £10,000 £8,647 £10,000 
Ministers+Staff expenses £928 £861 £7,578 £10,330 £7,578 £10,330 
Intern Costs - £450 £2 080 £4520 £2,080 £4,520 
Sunday Services £364 £1,290 £15587 £19976 £15 587 £19 976 
Online church - - £3 867 £4000 £3 867 £4 000 
Events £1,352 £1,440 £3 975 £5,670 £3 975 £5 670 
Communitv Outreach £699 - £8875 £5 850 £8,875 £5,850 
CYF exoenditure £141 £769 £5,449 £8602 £5 449 £8602 
Pastoral care - £94 £15 £1,125 £15 £1 ,125 
Discipleship+Clusters £26 £188 £1427 £2 250 £1,427 £2,250 
Local+Global mission £3 070 £3,975 £39 562 £56 700 £39 562 £56 700 
Hospitality £141 £383 £1922 £5265 £1,922 £5265 
Centre Ministry £60 £129 £982 £1544 £982 £1544 
Marketing+Communications (incl Website) £663 £994 £8 373 £11 924 £8 373 £11 924 
IT Costs £98 £593 £6 989 £7112 £6,989 £7,112 
Subscriotions £197 £152 £2 702 £1825 £2,702 £1 ,825 
Professional fees £1123 £1,184 £13 650 £14 210 £13 650 £14 210 
Rent+Rates £601 £1,048 £8 734 £12 572 £8 734 £12,572 
Utilities £4830 £2500 £43 752 £30005 £43,752 £30005 
Facilities Maintainence+Cleaning £1,917 £2537 £18 115 £30444 £18,115 £30444 
Minibus £634 £242 £1,342 £2,900 £1,342 £2,900 
Photocooiers, stationery etc £1,561 £1,964 £21,687 £23,565 £21,687 £23,565 
Telephone+Wi-Fi £409 £422 £4,891 £5,065 £4,891 £5,065 
Library £45 £67 £415 £800 £415 £800 
Deaf ministry £713 £158 £3,102 £1,900 £3,102 £1,900 
Safeguarding - £65 £588 £778 £588 £778 
Leadership School - - £4,098 £6,650 £4,098 £6,650 
Cafe+Caterinli! non-staff costs £3434 £4,074 £43 595 £48887 £43 595 £48887 
Conferencing non-staff costs £12 £63 £1032 £756 £1,032 £756 
Miscellaneous £39 £13 £154 £160 £154 £160 
Expenditure from Designated/Allocated Funds - - £9874 - £9874 -

Feasibility Studv - - - - - -
Contingency - - - - - -

Transfers out to other budgets £1956 £16036 £182 215 £192 278 £182 215 £192 278 
Prior Year Adiustment - - £440 - £440 -

TOTAL EXPENDITURE £64,575 £83,279 £929,563 £995,932 £929,563 £995,932 
- - - - - -

(DEFICIT)/SU RPLUS (£4,236) (£3,093} (£3,615) £0 (£3,615) £0 



Statement of funds as at 31 December 2018 

ASSETS 
Cash at bank and in hand £167,282 
Gift Aid owed by HMRC £8,361 
Debtors - conferences etc (less bad debt provision) £4,147 
Prepayments £15,056 
Cyclescheme £100 
Money due from DFN £2,854 
TOTAL ASSETS £197,800 

LIABILITIES 
PAYE+Pensions £8,629 
Accruals+Creditors £32,749 
TOTAL LIABILITIES £41 ,378 

TOTAL RESERVES (RESTRICTED+ UNRESTRICTED FUNDS) £156,422 

Held for others £7,865 
Allocated reserves £62,000 
Unrestricted funds £86,557 

Unrestricted funds reconciliation 
As at 1 January 2018 £92,816 
Surolus/(Deficit) for year - Create (£21,134) 
Surolus/(Deficit) for year - RB Community Church £5,983 
Surplus/(Deficit) for year - The Crossing £11,620 
Surplus/(Deficit) for year - Rising Brook (One Church) (£240) 
lncrease/(Decrease) for year - Thank offering reserves (£2,488) 
At 31 December 2018 £86,557 

*Allocated reserves 
Stafford Refugees £4,313 
India medical fund £6,100 
New Building Fund £12,434 
Mercia Network £1 ,757 
Russia Mission Pot £12,000 
The Crossing Training Fund £429 
Food4Thought £2,789 
Gambia fundraisino £10,939 
Amber Brown Mission Fund £2,900 
SCVYS Grants £1 ,245 
Youth weekends/Ssurvivor/Power Up holding funds £128 
Create youth prooram orant £1,500 
Create youth worker fund £5,466 
Total £62,000 

**Held for Others 
Men's ministry - RB Community Church £368 
Women's ministry - RB Community Church £1,282 
BSL Course £3,562 
Youth cake sales - homeless £108 
Romania Camp Bursaries £1 ,164 
Crisis Gift to Pass On £1,000 
Jeff Russell £63 
Russia £90 
Lebanon £228 
Total £7,865 



Application for 

Grant Aid St011e 
Town Council 

Name of organisation: The Crown Wharf Theatre 

Purpose ot organisation: The Crown Wharf Theatre is new charity set up by Stone Revellers working in partnership 
with Joule's Brewery. Its purpose is to create a modern performance venue in the heart of Stone to promote all 
aspects of the performing arts: drama, music, dance, comedy and film. 

The organisation enables people to participate in the arts by providing a professional and accessible 

performance venue. Having a local performance venue will provide members of the public with a range of 

volunteering roles as well as opportunities to produce and perform artistic work. 

It also enables the expansion of current groups/societies by having a good quality and fit-for-purpose 

venue in which to perform. 

Amount of grant requested: 

£500 

Reason for grant request: 

Total cost of project (if appropriate): 

£15,000 

Crown Wharf Theatre is raising money to ensure the theatre is fitted and kitted out for a comfortable and professiona 
environment and to meet the needs of as many potential users as possible. 

We have engaged the services of a professional theatre design company to ensure that the theatre is fit for purpose 
and to establish the costs, and therefore, our ultimate fund raising target. 

The cost of these services is £15,000 and this is our initial fundraising target. 
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Benefits to Stone residents: 
This partnership represents a huge opportunity to develop a leisure, arts and culture facility that will come from 
organisations deeply rooted in the community and history of the town. This new development puts local people at its 
heartwhilst attracting more visitors to the town and its businesses. 

iThe addition of a purpose built 140-seat studio theatre in the town centre will provide a space for live theatre, music, 
dance and comedy as well as cinema, corporate events and community meetings all year round. 

!The addition of a quality arts facility in the town centre will fill a recognised and long-standing gap in Stone's 
landscape. Stone has a rich tradition of arts, culture and live performance demonstrated through: 

A range of longstanding community events 
A culture of live music & open mies in its pubs and clubs 
Established arts organisations such as Stone Revellers & Rooftop Studios. 
Several other dance groups, choirs, bands, U3A and a range of other interest groups. 

iThese groups have all flourished through ingenuity, dedication and passion for what they do, but have often been 
hampered by the lack of a high quality performance/presentation space. This new facility will take an operating 
approach that builds upon the town's existing arts, culture and community activity, and will look to foster a sense of a 
!facility run by, and for, the community of Stone. 

Other sources offunding secured or being explored (with amounts where known): 

We are currently pulling together our fund raising strategy which will include approaching businesses, local 
organisations/ societies and members of the public. 

We have received a donation of £1000 from a member of the public and £200 from the Stone Revellers theatre 
Group. 

Is this an "exceptional" request (see notes)? If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: 

Not Applicable 

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding: 

Not Applicable 

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable) : 
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Grant Aid Stone 
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Name of organisation: 

Douglas Macmillan Hospice 
Purpose of organisation: 
Our aim is to maintain and to continue to respond to the increasing needs of patients in 
our local community by delivering exceptional professional care to people approaching 
end of life. At Dougie Mac we are resolute in our core mission; patient care provision. 
We aspire to offer access to hospice care for all local people with a palliative illness, to 
make sure we reach those most vulnerable in our community and to work together with 
groups, organisations, trusts, individuals and businesses to ensure we can continue to 
deliver the 'Dougie Mac magic' for which we are so well known and respected. 
It's your Dougie Mac. 
Amount of grant requested: Total cost of project (if appropriate): 

£550.00 £19,250.00 

Reason for grant request : 

To deliver the 'bespoke care' it is imperative that we keep Inpatient equipment up to date to cope 
with the ever more complex and changing needs of our society. 

Due to a recent refurbishment on our Inpatient ward we now need to upgrade our existing 
mattresses. Our Inpatient Services Manager and Director of Care have reasearched all 
options and the Dyna Form Mercury Advance mattress was thought to be the best product 
available to suit our hospice needs. 

Can Stone Town Council help by purchasing one Dyna-Form Mercury Advance mattress? 

This is a dynamic mattress replacement system combined with the benefits of modern foam 
technology. lt is specifically designed for patients considered to be at 'Very High Risk' of pressure 
ulcer development. With a maximum weight capacity of up to 40 stone, it meets the modern 
chatlenges of those heavier patients. All component parts are interchangeable and replaceable, 
maximising product life and reducing environmental Impact. The outer cover comprises a high 
frequency welded, multi stretch and vapour permeable fabric, satisfying the strictest infection 
control policies. 

The success of our hospice is dependent on the goodwill of local people to support our diverse 
income streams. 
We rely entirely on voluntary donations for 80% of the £12m needed to run our specialist services. 
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Benefits to Stone residents: 

We receive care referrals from just outside Market Drayton in the east across to 
Denstone in the west; Rushton Spencer in the north to Stone in the south. This is our 
heartland and it covers approximately 300 square miles with a total population of over 
500,000 residents. 

In the past 4 years we have received over £66,800 from 'In Memory Of donations from 
individuals in and around Stone (based on postcode ST15 8) indicating that they have 
been directly affected by loss in their lives. If we can help families and their loved ones 
to find comfort in their last weeks, days or hours together, then we have accomplished 
our mission. 

Stoke-on-Trent is currently ranked the 14th most deprived local authority (out of 326) in 
England. The health of our community is generally worse than the England average. 
Premature mortality (deaths under the age of 75) from the three major killers - cancer, 
circulatory disease, respiratory disease - are all significantly higher compared with other 
parts of England. 

Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known); 

Hospice Aid UK £550-1 x mattress 
David & Ruth Lewis Family Charitable Trust £1100- 2 x mattresses 
The Kobler Trust -Awaiting decision 
Graham Kirkham Foundation - Awaiting decision 
Rotary Club of Wolstanton -Awaiting decision 
The Cotton Trust - Awaiting decision 

Is this an "exceptional" request (see notes)? If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: 

As the maximum stated application value is noted as £500 and each mattress costs 
£550, I have declared this request here as 'exceptional'. We would be very grateful 
if Stone Town Council would see fit to award the full amount of one mattress 
rather than part-payment. 

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding: 

None. 

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable): 

Not applicable. 
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Could Stone Town Council help Dougie Mac by donating for the purchase of 

1 of the 35 specialist mattresses' needed for our Inpatient Services, 

The Dyna-Form Mercury 
Advance is a dynamic mattress 
replacement system combined 
with the benefits of modern 
foam technology. It is 
specifically designed for 
patients considered to be at 
'Very High Risk' of pressure 
ulcer development. Offering 
high levels of patient comfort, 
t his unique system has the 
facility to "step up" to that of a 
dynamic mattress when clinically 
required. 

costing £550 each? 

Dyna-Form· 
Mercury Advance 

These features make it particularly 
beneficial for use within our wards and help 
reduce logistic and decontamination costs. 
The clinical benefits of a single system are 
equally applicable to those of a modern 
hospital setting. 

A higher maximum weight capacity, up to 
40 stone, allows the product to meet the 
modern challenges of those heavier 
patients. All component parts are 
interchangeable and replaceable, 
maximising product life and reducing 
environmental impact. The outer 
cover comprises a high frequency welded, 
multi stretch and vapour permeable fabric, 

'-'------ --- ---- satisfying the strictest infection control. 

"How people die 

remains in the 

memory of those 

who live on" 
Dame Cicely Saunders 

DougieMac 

Jilly Lawton, Trust and Philanthropic Fundraiser, Douglas Macmillan Hospice. t: 01782 344308 e: trustsadmin@dmhospice.org.uk 
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'HDWK�DQG�G\LQJ�DUH�LQHYLWDEOH��

7KH�ZD\�ZH�VXSSRUW�WKRVH�ZKR�DUH�FRQWHQGLQJ�ZLWK�WKH�SURVSHFW�RI�G\LQJ�GXH�WR�D�WHUPLQDO�LOOQHVV�LV�DW�WKH�FRUH�RI�RXU�KXPDQLW\���

)RU����\HDUV�WKH�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH��RU�'RXJLH�0DF��DV�ZH�DUH�FROORTXLDOO\�NQRZQ��KDV�EHHQ�SURYLGLQJ�SDOOLDWLYH�DQG�HQG�RI�
OLIH�FDUH�WR�SHRSOH�ZLWK�D�OLPLWHG�OLIH�H[SHFWDQF\�DQG�SURJUHVVLYH�DGYDQFHG�LOOQHVV�VR�WKDW�WKH\�FDQ�KDYH�WKH�EHVW�SRVVLEOH�TXDOLW\�RI�
OLIH���:H�DUH�WKH�RQO\�DGXOW�KRVSLFH�LQ�1RUWK�6WDIIRUGVKLUH�DQG�RXU�LPSDFW�LV�LPPHQVH��ERWK�DW�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�OHYHO�ZLWK�UHJDUG�WR�WKH�
FDOLEHU� RI�FDUH� GHOLYHUHG� WR� SDWLHQWV�DQG� IDPLOLHV� DFURVV�RXU�KHDUWODQG��DQG�DW� WKH� OHYHO� RI� VRFLDO� FRQWULEXWLRQ� WR� WKH� ORFDO� KHDOWK�
HFRQRP\�� SUHYHQWLQJ� XQQHFHVVDU\� DGPLVVLRQV� WR� KRVSLWDO� DQG� VXSSRUWLQJ� VWDWXWRU\� VHUYLFH� SURYLGHUV�� � $V�ZH� FHOHEUDWH� RXU� ��WK

ELUWKGD\�ZH�FDQ�UHIOHFW�RQ�D�FRQWHPSRUDU\�UHOHYDQFH�WKDW�KDV�QHYHU�EHHQ�JUHDWHU��D�UHSXWDWLRQ�ZKLFK�KDV�EORVVRPHG�RYHU�WKRVH�\HDUV�
DQG�D�VFDOH�ZKLFK�QRZ�HQDEOHV�WKH�KRVSLFH�WR�SRVLWLRQ�LWVHOI�DV�D�NH\�LQIOXHQFHU�RQ�LVVXHV�DIIHFWLQJ�SDOOLDWLYH�DQG�HQG�RI�OLIH�FDUH��

:KHQ�WKH�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RPH�RSHQHG�LQ������WKRVH�SLRQHHULQJ�OHDGHUV�EHKLQG�LWV�LQFHSWLRQ��HVWLPDWHG�WKDW�LW�PD\�FRVW�DV�PXFK�
DV���������SHU�\HDU�WR�UXQ�WKH�IDFLOLW\��EXW�WKH\�ZHUH�RSWLPLVWLF�WKDW�WKH�JHQHURVLW\�RI� ORFDO�SHRSOH�ZRXOG�PDNH�LW�D�KXJH�VXFFHVV���
7KH\�ZHUH�ULJKW�����\HDUV� ODWHU�'RXJLH�0DF�FDQ�UHO\�RQ�����PLOOLRQ�SHU�\HDU�IURP�ORFDO� LQGLYLGXDOV��RUJDQLVDWLRQV�DQG�EXVLQHVVHV�
WRZDUG�WKH�DQQXDO�RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV�RI����PLOOLRQ���6HUYLFHV�KDYH�EURDGHQHG�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�LQ������DOPRVW�����RI�SDWLHQWV�DUH�QRQ�
FDQFHU�SDWLHQWV�ZLWK�D�UDQJH�RI�RWKHU�LOOQHVVHV�DQG�ZH�DUH�QRZ�RQH�RI�WKH�IHZ�8.�KRVSLFHV�WR�FHPHQW�RXU�GHPHQWLD�VSHFLDOL]DWLRQ�E\�
WKH�DSSRLQWPHQW�RI�DQ�$GPLUDO�1XUVH���2XU�+RVSLFH�,QSDWLHQW�8QLW�LV�QRZ�D����EHG�IDFLOLW\�ZLWK�DURXQG�����DGPLVVLRQV�WKLV�\HDU�DQG�
RXU�VSHFLDOLVW�FRPPXQLW\�WHDPV�UHFHLYHG�������QHZ�UHIHUUDOV�DQG�FDUHG�IRU�RYHU�������SDWLHQWV�DW�KRPH�WKLV�\HDU���:H�VWDQG�RQ�WKH�
VKRXOGHUV�RI�WKRVH�YLVLRQDU\�SHRSOH�ZKR�RSHQHG�WKH�GRRUV�LQ������EXW�KRSHIXOO\�WKLV�$QQXDO�5HSRUW�ZLOO�FRQILUP�WR�WKHP�WKHLU�OHJDF\�
KDV�EHHQ�FKHULVKHG�DQG�QXUWXUHG��

7KH�7UXVWHHV�FRQILUP�WKDW�WKH\�KDYH�FRPSOLHG�ZLWK�WKH�GXW\�LQ�6HFWLRQ���RI�WKH�&KDULWLHV�$FW�E\�UHIHUULQJ�WR�JXLGDQFH�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�
JHQHUDO�JXLGDQFH�RQ�SXEOLF�EHQHILW��

285�$&+,(9(0(176�,1���������

)RU�SDWLHQWV��DQG�WKHLU�IDPLOLHV��OLYLQJ�ZLWK�D�WHUPLQDO�LOOQHVV�FDQ�EH�DQ�LVRODWLQJ�DQG�EHZLOGHULQJ�H[SHULHQFH���+RZHYHU��ZH�NQRZ�
IURP�WKH�SRZHUIXO�DQG�SRLJQDQW�IHHGEDFN�WKDW�ZH�UHJXODUO\�UHFHLYH�WKDW�ZKHQ�KRVSLFH�FDUH�LV�UHFHLYHG�IURP�'RXJLH�0DF�WKH�LPSDFW�
LV�KXJHO\�SRVLWLYH���1RQHWKHOHVV��DORQJVLGH�VXFK�IDYRUDEOH�DQHFGRWDO�HYLGHQFH�LW�LV�YLWDO�WR�UHIOHFW�RQ�ZKDW�VRPH�NH\�QXPEHUV�WHOO�XV���
&RQVHTXHQWO\��LQ�DVVHVVLQJ�RXU�DFKLHYHPHQWV�RYHU�WKH�SDVW�\HDU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�GDWD�SURYLGHV�FRPSHOOLQJ�HYLGHQFH�RI�WKH�DIIHFW�ZH�
KDYH�KDG��

¾� 2I�DOO�SDOOLDWLYH�FDUH�SDWLHQWV�LQ�RXU�KHDUWODQG�DUHD�RI�6WRNH�RQ�7UHQW�DQG�1RUWK�6WDIIRUGVKLUH��ZH�HVWLPDWH�WKDW������ZHUH�
UHIHUUHG�WR�'RXJLH�0DF�IRU�KRVSLFH�FDUH�

¾� :H�UHFHLYHG�������UHIHUUDOV�LQ�WKH�\HDU��RI�ZKLFK�����ZHUH�FDQFHU�SDWLHQWV�DQG�����KDG�RWKHU�OLIH�OLPLWLQJ�LOOQHVVHV���:H�KDYH�
VHHQ�����LQFUHDVH�LQ�UHIHUUDOV�IRU�SDWLHQWV�ZLWK�D�GHPHQWLD�GLDJQRVLV�

¾� 7KH�SULPDU\�FDUH�UHTXLUHPHQW�ZDV�V\PSWRP�SDLQ�FRQWURO�IRU�����RI�SDWLHQWV�
¾� 2XU������$GYLFH�/LQH�UHFHLYHG�������FDOOV��PRVWO\�IURP�SDWLHQWV�RU�FDUHUV�
¾� :H�DGPLWWHG�����SDWLHQWV�WR�RXU�,QSDWLHQW�8QLW������RI�ZKRP�ZHUH�DGPLWWHG�ZLWKLQ���GD\V�RI�UHIHUUDO�
¾� 2XU�VSHFLDOLVW�FRPPXQLW\�QXUVHV�FDUHG�IRU�RYHU�������SDWLHQWV�DW�WKHLU�KRPH�RU�SODFH�RI�UHVLGHQFH�DQG�RXU�+RVSLFH�DW�+RPH�

WHDP�HQDEOHG�����SDWLHQWV�WR�GLH�DW�KRPH�DV�WKH\�KDG�H[SUHVVO\�ZLVKHG�WR�GR�VR�

2XU�UHFHQWO\�SXEOLVKHG�4XDOLW\�$FFRXQW���������FRQILUPV�WKH�SURJUHVV�PDGH�RQ�RXU�PLVVLRQ�VWDWHPHQW�³7R�GHOLYHU�H[FHOOHQW�FDUH�WR�
SHRSOH�DSSURDFKLQJ�HQG�RI�OLIH´���0RUHRYHU�WKLV�UHSRUW�VSRWOLJKWV�WKDW�HQG�RI�OLIH�SDWLHQWV�WKDW�GR�QRW�UHFHLYH�KRVSLFH�VXSSRUW�DUH�WZLFH�
DV�OLNHO\�WR�GLH�LQ�KRVSLWDO�VR�RXU�LPSDFW�RQ�XQQHFHVVDU\�KRVSLWDO�DGPLVVLRQV�LV�FOHDU��
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7KH�ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH�IRU�ILQDQFLDO�\HDU���������LV�VHW�RXW�LQ�GHWDLO�LQ�WKH�DWWDFKHG�&RQVROLGDWHG�
6WDWHPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�$FWLYLWLHV��

7RWDO�H[SHQGLWXUH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�H[FHHGHG�LQFRPH�E\�����.�DQG�WKLV�RSHUDWLRQDO�GHILFLW�LV�LQFUHDVHG�WR�����.�ZKHQ�DGMXVWPHQWV�DUH�
PDGH�IRU�DQ�DFWXDULDO�ORVV�RQ�WKH�KRVSLFH¶V�GHILQHG�EHQHILWV�VFKHPH������.��DQG�RXU�ORVV�RQ�LQYHVWPHQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�����.����7KH�
\HDU�ZDV�FKDUDFWHUL]HG�E\�VKRUWIDOOV�LQ�GRQDWHG�LQFRPH�DQG�LQFRPH�UHFHLYHG�IURP�FKDULWDEOH�DFWLYLWLHV�RI�FLUFD�����.��FRQWUDVWLQJ�
ZLWK�LQFUHDVH�LQ�LQFRPH�IURP�WUDGLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�RI�����.���:H�DUH�HQRUPRXVO\�JUDWHIXO�WR�RXU�VXSSRUWHUV��ZKR�FKRRVH�WR�OHDYH�D�ODVWLQJ�
OHJDF\�WR�WKH�KRVSLFH��HQVXULQJ�FDUH�IRU�IXWXUH�JHQHUDWLRQV��EXW�RI�FRXUVH�LQFRPH�IURP�OHJDFLHV�FDQ�IOXFWXDWH�IURP�\HDU�WR�\HDU�DQG�LW�
LV�GLIILFXOW�WR�SUHGLFW�ZKHWKHU�VXFK�OHYHOV�RI�OHJDF\�LQFRPH�ZLOO�UHFXU���7KH�XSZDUG�WUHQG�LQ�LQFRPH�IURP�RXU�UHWDLO�VKRSV�FRQWLQXHV�WKLV�
\HDU�ZLWK�DQ�LQFUHDVH�RI�����.�RQ�WKH�SUHYLRXV�\HDU�DQG�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�QHW�FRQWULEXWLRQV�RI�DQ�LQVSLULQJ�����.��

([SHQGLWXUH�DFURVV�DOO�DUHDV�RI� WKH�RUJDQL]DWLRQ� LV�WLJKWO\�FRQWUROOHG�DQG�ZDV�KHOG�ZHOO�ZLWKLQ�EXGJHW���0RUHRYHU�RXU�UHVHUYHV�DUH�
PDLQWDLQHG�DW�DGHTXDWH�OHYHOV�WR�FXVKLRQ�WKH�KRVSLFH�DJDLQVW�IXWXUH�UHGXFWLRQV�LQ�LQFRPH�OHYHOV�DV�ZHOO�DV�WR�SURYLGH�FDSLWDO�IRU�IXWXUH�
VWUDWHJLF�JURZWK�DQG�LQGHHG�RXU�OHYHOV�RI�UHVHUYHV�UHPDLQ�VXEVWDQWLDO�GHVSLWH�DQ�XSOLIW�LQ�SURYLVLRQV�IRU�D�GHILFLW�LQ�WKH�FORVHG�GHILQHG�
EHQHILW�SHQVLRQ�VFKHPH��

:KHUH�GRHV�WKH�IXQGLQJ�FRPH�IURP"�

$V�D�FKDULW\�WKH�KRVSLFH�UHOLHV�KHDYLO\�RQ�YROXQWDU\�GRQDWLRQV���2XU�1+6�&&*�JUDQW�KDV�QRW�LQFUHDVHG�IRU�PDQ\�\HDUV�DQG�FXUUHQWO\�
DFFRXQWV�IRU�RQO\�����RI�RXU�WRWDO�UHTXLUHPHQW���7KH�JHQHURVLW\�DQG�NLQGQHVV�RI�ORFDO�SHRSOH� LV� WKH�HVVHQFH�RI�RXU�VXFFHVV�DV�D�
KRVSLFH���0DQ\�RI�WKH�SHRSOH�ZKR�FKRRVH�WR�GRQDWH�WR�XV�GR�VR�LQ�PHPRU\�RI�D�ORYHG�RQH��ZKRP�ZH�FDUHG�IRU��RU�LQ�DGPLUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
LPSDFW�ZH�KDYH�KDG�RQ�PDQ\�WKRXVDQGV�RI�ORFDO�IDPLOLHV�RYHU�WKH�ODVW����\HDUV���6RPH�IDPLOLHV�DVN�IULHQGV�DWWHQGLQJ�D�IXQHUDO�WR�
GRQDWH�WR�XV�LQ�OLHX�RI�EULQJLQJ�IORZHUV��RWKHUV�FUHDWH�DQ�HYHQW�WR�IXQGUDLVH�RQ�RXU�EHKDOI���0DQ\�VXSSRUWHUV�DWWHQG�RXU�IXQGUDLVLQJ�
HYHQWV�VXFK�DV�WKH�ELNH�ULGH����.�UXQ��0RRQOLJKW�:DON�RU�DQQXDO�'RXJLH�0DF�%DOO���+RZHYHU�WKH\�GHFLGH�WR�GRQDWH��RXU�VXSSRUWHUV�
PDNH�DQ�HQRUPRXV�GLIIHUHQFH�WR�RXU�ZRUN���,W�LV�ILWWLQJ�WR�UHFRUG�RXU�VLQFHUH�WKDQNV�WR�DOO�RI�RXU�VXSSRUWHUV�LQ�WKH�7UXVWHHV�5HSRUW��DQG�
DOVR�WR�DFNQRZOHGJH�WKH�ZRQGHUIXO�ZRUN�GRQH�E\�DURXQG�������'RXJLH�0DF�YROXQWHHUV�ZKR�KDYH�GRQDWHG�WKHLU�YDOXDEOH�WLPH���$Q�
LQFUHGLEOH���������KRXUV�DFURVV�DOO�DUHDV�RI�WKH�FKDULW\�ZLWKRXW�ZKLFK�ZH�VLPSO\�FRXOG�QRW�GHOLYHU�WKH�EUHDGWK�DQG�GHSWK�RI�RXU�VHUYLFH��

285�)81'5$,6,1*�$3352$&+

*LYHQ�WKDW�RYHU���PLOOLRQ�ZDV�UDLVHG�E\�YROXQWDU\�GRQDWLRQV�ODVW�\HDU�LW�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WR�HPSKDVL]H�WKDW�RXU�DSSURDFK�WR�UDLVLQJ�IXQGV�
LV�WUDQVSDUHQW��DV�JUHDWHU�WUDQVSDUHQF\�IRVWHUV�JUHDWHU�FRQILGHQFH�LQ�'RXJLH�0DF�DV�D�FKDULW\���:H�DOZD\V�WDNH�FDUH�WR�EH�GLUHFW�DQG�
KRQHVW�ZLWK�DQ\RQH�ZKR�VKDUHV�WKHLU�PRQH\�RU�WLPH�ZLWK�XV���2XU�DSSURDFK�LV�WR�EH�VWURQJ�DGYRFDWHV�RI�WKH�VXSHUE�FDUH�GHOLYHUHG�DW�
WKH�+RVSLFH�E\�HQWKXVLDVWLFDOO\�QXUWXULQJ�RXU�UHODWLRQVKLSV�ZLWK�FXUUHQW�GRQRUV�DV�ZHOO�DV�DWWUDFWLQJ�QHZ�VXSSRUWHUV���:H�GR�DV�PXFK�
RI�RXU�IXQGUDLVLQJ�DV�SRVVLEOH�LQ�KRXVH��LQFOXGLQJ�LQWHUDFWLQJ�ZLWK�GRQRUV�WKURXJK�RXU�6XSSRUWHU�+XE�WHDP���:H�KDG�QR�UHODWLRQVKLSV�
ZLWK�H[WHUQDO�SURIHVVLRQDO� IXQGUDLVHUV� WKLV�\HDU�� �2FFDVLRQDOO\�ZH�KDYH�EHHQ�DSSURDFKHG�E\� ILUPV�VHHNLQJ� WR�ZRUN�ZLWK�XV�RQ�D�
FRPPHUFLDO�SDUWLFLSDWRU�EDVLV�EXW�RXU�GXH�GLOLJHQFH�UHYHDOV�WKDW�WKH�WLPH�DQG�HIIRUW� LQYROYHG�UDUHO\�\LHOGV�D�FRPPHQVXUDWH�XSOLIW� LQ�
LQFRPH��HVSHFLDOO\�JLYHQ�WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�FRQWURO�ULVNV��VR�ZH�GLG�QRW�IRUP�DQ\�FRPPHUFLDO�SDUWLFLSDWRU�UHODWLRQVKLSV�LQ����������

7KH�FKDULW\�LV�UHJLVWHUHG�ZLWK�WKH�QHZ�)XQGUDLVLQJ�5HJXODWRU�DQG�ZH�DGKHUH�WR�WKHLU�&RGH�RI�3UDFWLFH���2XU�VWDII�DUH�IXOO\�WUDLQHG�DQG�
XQGHUVWDQG�WKHLU�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�DV�ZH�DUH�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�,QVWLWXWH�RI�)XQGUDLVLQJ�DQG�PRUHRYHU�WKH�YDOXHV�DQG�FXOWXUH�RI�'RXJODV�
0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH�GHPDQG�FDQGRXU�DQG�WUDQVSDUHQF\�RI�DOO�RI�RXU�HPSOR\HHV��

,Q�VKRUW��GRQDWLQJ�WR�'RXJLH�0DF�VKRXOG�EH�D�JUHDW�H[SHULHQFH���,I�DQ\�GRQRUV�IHHO�ZH�KDYH�IDOOHQ�VKRUW�RI�WKH�VWDQGDUGV�ZH�VHW�WKHQ�
ZH�PDNH�LW�VWUDLJKWIRUZDUG�IRU�SHRSOH�WR�FRQWDFW�XV�DQG�ZH�ZLOO�DOZD\V�VHHN�WR�SXW�WKDW�ULJKW���$ORQJVLGH�RXU�3ULYDF\�1RWLFH�ZH�KDYH�
D�6DIHJXDUGLQJ�3ROLF\�ZKLFK�FRYHUV�YXOQHUDEOH�SHUVRQV�ZKLFK�ZH�UHJXODUO\�UHYLHZ�VR�WKDW�WKHUH�FDQ�EH�QR�XQUHDVRQDEOH�LQWUXVLRQ�RQ�
D�SHUVRQ¶V�SULYDF\�RU�DQ\�VXJJHVWLRQV�RI�RYHU�SHUVLVWHQW�DSSURDFKHV�WR�REWDLQ�IXQGV�RU�XQGXH�SUHVVXUH�RQ�DQ\RQH�WR�GRQDWH�WR�XV��

7KH�UHSXWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�+RVSLFH�DQG�FHQWUDOLW\�RI�RXU�GRQRUV�LQ�DOO�RI�WKH�ZRUN�WKDW�ZH�XQGHUWDNH�PHDQV�WKDW�RXU�DWWLWXGHV��EHKDYLRUV�
DQG�SUDFWLFHV�PXVW�EH�H[HPSODU\�DW�DOO�WLPHV��
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7KH�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH�KDV�D���\HDU�6WUDWHJLF�3ODQ�ZKLFK�HQFDSVXODWHV�RXU�DPELWLRQV�DQG�RXWOLQHV�RXU�JRDOV���:H�DLP�WR�
GHOLYHU�H[FHOOHQFH�LQ�HYHU\WKLQJ�WKDW�ZH�GR�IRU�SDWLHQWV��IDPLOLHV�DQG�FDUHUV�VR�WKDW�RXU�UHSXWDWLRQ�FRQWLQXHV�WR�EH�HQKDQFHG�E\�DQ�
LQQRYDWLYH��YDOXHV�GULYHQ�DQG�VXVWDLQDEOH�DSSURDFK�WR�WKH�JURZWK�RI�WKH�RUJDQL]DWLRQ���7KH�7UXVWHHV�IHHO�LW�LV�RXU�GXW\�DV�D�KRVSLFH�WR�
EH�DPELWLRXV�LQ�WKHVH�WU\LQJ�WLPHV�DQG�WR�FRPPLW�WR�SURYLGH�RXU�VSHFLDOLVW�H[SHUWLVH�DQG�VXSSRUW�WKDW�FDQ�UDUHO\�EH�IRXQG�HOVHZKHUH���
:H�NQRZ�WKDW�SHRSOH�ZLWK�OLIH�OLPLWLQJ�LOOQHVV��LQ�QHHG�RI�SDOOLDWLYH�DQG�HQG�RI�OLIH�FDUH�RIWHQ�SUHIHU�WR�VWD\�DW�KRPH�DQG�ZLVK�WR�UHWDLQ�
WKHLU�LQGHSHQGHQFH���7KLV�UHTXLUHV�UHVRXUFHV�DQG�VXSSRUW�EXW�LV�DW�WKH�FRUH�RI�RXU�VWUDWHJ\��WR�VXFK�DQ�H[WHQW�WKDW�WKH�H[SDQVLRQ�RI�
RXU�FRPPXQLW\�WHDPV�LV�D�NH\�SULRULW\�LQ�RXU�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ���+RZHYHU�ZH�DOVR�NQRZ�WKDW�PDQ\�SDWLHQWV�QHHG�WR�EH�DGPLWWHG�WR�WKH�
+RVSLFH¶�,QSDWLHQW�8QLW��,38��DQG�LW�LV�RXU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�FUHDWH�WKH�YHU\�EHVW�HQYLURQPHQW�LQ�RXU�EHG�VHUYLFHV���&RQVHTXHQWO\�WKH�
7UXVWHHV�KDYH�DJUHHG�WR�HPEDUN�RQ�WKH�ODUJHVW�UHIXUELVKPHQW�RI�RXU�,38�IRU�RYHU�D�GHFDGH�WR�PRGHUQL]H�WKH�SK\VLFDO�HQYLURQPHQW�
VR�WKDW�LW�PDWFKHV�WKH�FRQWHPSRUDU\�VWDQGDUGV�RI�WKH�H[FHOOHQW�FDUH�ZH�GHOLYHU���7KLV�PDMRU�SURMHFW�ZLOO�FRPPHQFH�LQ�$XWXPQ�������
IROORZLQJ�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�D�QHZ�URRI�LQ�HDUO\������DQG�RXU�DLP�LV�WR�UHIOHFW�WKH�JHQXLQH�LPSRUWDQFH�WR�'RXJLH�0DF�RI�GHOLYHULQJ�
µZRUOG�FODVV¶�IDFLOLWLHV�WR�WKH�SHRSOH�RI�6WRNH�RQ�7UHQW�DQG�1RUWK�6WDIIRUGVKLUH�LQ�JUDWLWXGH�IRU�WKHLU�FRQVLVWHQW�VXSSRUW��NLQGQHVV�DQG�
JHQHURVLW\��

2XU�KLJK�OHYHO�VWUDWHJLF�REMHFWLYHV�IRU�WKH�QH[W���\HDUV�DUH��

D�� �$FKLHYHPHQW�RI�DQ�DPELWLRXV�DQQXDO�EXGJHW�UHIOHFWLQJ�VXVWDLQDELOLW\�DQG�EDODQFHG�JURZWK�
E�� ,QFUHDVHG�SDWLHQW�DFFHVV�WR�RXU�FOLQLFDO�VHUYLFHV�E\�����
F�� $WWDLQPHQW�RI�DQ�2XWVWDQGLQJ�UDWLQJ�IURP�WKH�&DUH�4XDOLW\�&RPPLVVLRQ�
G�� 7R�HPEHG�RXU�3HRSOH�6WUDWHJ\�VR�WKDW�VWDII�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�OHYHOV�H[FHHG������VLFNQHVV�DEVHQFH�OHYHOV�UHGXFH�WR����DQG�VWDII�

UHWHQWLRQ�UHDFKHV�����E\�������SURYLGLQJ�WDQJLEOH�HYLGHQFH�RI�'RXJLH�0DF�DV�DQ�HPSOR\HU�RI�JHQXLQH�H[FHOOHQFH�

7UXVWHHV�DFNQRZOHGJH�WKDW�WKH�SDFH�RI�FKDQJH�LQ�RXU�ORFDO�KHDOWK�HFRQRP\�LV�XQOLNHO\�WR�VODFNHQ�LQ�WKH�QH[W���\HDUV�DQG�WKH�FKDOOHQJHV�
RI�SRSXODWLRQ�DJHLQJ�ZLOO�LQWHQVLI\���7KHUHIRUH�RXU�KRVSLFH�REMHFWLYHV�PXVW�EH�G\QDPLF�VR�WKDW�'RXJLH�0DF�FDQ�UHDFW�ZLWK�IOH[LELOLW\�WR�
IUHVK�RSSRUWXQLWLHV��HPSRZHULQJ�KRVSLFH�OHDGHUV�WR�H[SORUH�LQLWLDWLYHV�ZKLFK�ZLOO�H[WHQG�RXU�UHDFK��

)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�IRU�'0+�,QFRPH�IRU�<HDU�(QGLQJ����0DUFK�����

dŽƚĂů�/ŶĐŽŵĞ

�D,�ZĞƚĂŝů

E,^�ͬ���'

>ĞŐĂĐŝĞƐ

�D,�>ŽƚƚĞƌǇ

�ŽŶĂƚŝŽŶƐ

�ǀĞŶƚƐ

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ

άϭϭ͘ϮϱD�Ͳ�ϭϬϬй

άϮ͘ϳD�Ͳ�Ϯϰй

άϮ͘ϲD�Ͳ�Ϯϯй

άϭ͘ϱD�Ͳ ϭϯй

άϭ͘ϱD�Ͳ�ϭϯй

άϭ͘ϰϱD�Ͳ�ϭϯй

άϭ͘ϮϱD�Ͳ�ϭϭй

άϬ͘ϮϱD�Ͳ Ϯй
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%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV�

7KH� %RDUG� RI� 7UXVWHHV� LV� WKH� JRYHUQLQJ� ERG\� WKDW� DGPLQLVWHUV� WKH� FKDULW\�� VHWV� WKH� VWUDWHJ\�� IRUPXODWHV� SROLF\� DQG� DVVHVVHV�
SURFHGXUHV�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW���7KH�%RDUG�PHHWV�UHJXODUO\�DQG�WKH�WUXVWHHV�DUH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�FRPSDQ\�EXW�QRQH�RI�WKH�WUXVWHHV�
KDV�D�EHQHILFLDO�LQWHUHVW�LQ�WKH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�DOO�DUH�XQSDLG�YROXQWHHUV��

7UXVWHH�5HFUXLWPHQW��$SSRLQWPHQW�DQG�,QGXFWLRQ

7KH�H[LVWLQJ�WUXVWHHV�RI�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH�DUH�HPSRZHUHG�XQGHU�WKH�$UWLFOHV�RI�$VVRFLDWLRQ�WR�HOHFW�QHZ�WUXVWHHV�DW�RXU�
$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ�DQG�WR�PDNH�FR�RSWLRQV�DW�DQ\�RWKHU�WLPH���6XFFHVVLRQ�SODQQLQJ�IRU�WUXVWHHV�LV�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�GLPHQVLRQ�RI�
JRYHUQDQFH�DV� LV�D�EOHQG�RI�VNLOOV� LQ� WKH�%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV��VR�QHZ� WUXVWHHV�DUH� UHFUXLWHG� LQ�D�YDULHW\�RI�ZD\V� LQFOXGLQJ�H[WHUQDO�
DGYHUWLVLQJ�DQG�SUHYLRXV�LQWHUHVW�LQ�DQG�LQYROYHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�+RVSLFH���$GGLWLRQDOO\�SRWHQWLDO�QHZ�WUXVWHHV�DUH�LQYLWHG�WR�DWWHQG�%RDUG�
PHHWLQJV�DV�DQ�REVHUYHU� WR�DVVLVW� WKHP�RQ�GHFLGLQJ�ZKHWKHU� WR�DJUHH� WR�D�QRPLQDWLRQ�DV�D� WUXVWHH�� �1HZ� WUXVWHHV� UHFHLYH�D� IXOO�
LQGXFWLRQ� SURJUDPPH� RYHU� DQ� H[WHQGHG� SHULRG�� LQFOXGLQJ� EULHILQJV� ZLWK� VHQLRU� H[HFXWLYHV� DQG� YLVLWV� WR� WKH� YDULRXV� SDUWV� RI� WKH�
RUJDQL]DWLRQ�WR�JDLQ�DQ�DSSUHFLDWLRQ�RI�WKH�PRVDLF�RI�DVSHFWV�ZKLFK�FRQWULEXWH�WR�WKH�VXFFHVV�RI�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH��

6XEFRPPLWWHHV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV�

7R�DVVLVW� LQ�WKH�VPRRWK�UXQQLQJ�RI�WKH�FKDULW\�WKH�%RDUG�LV�VXSSRUWHG�E\�VL[�VXEFRPPLWWHHV�HDFK�RI�ZKLFK�PHHWV�DW�DSSURSULDWHO\�
UHJXODU�LQWHUYDOV�DQG�DUH�FKDLUHG�E\�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�%RDUG���7KHVH�VXEFRPPLWWHHV�DUH��

¾� ,QYHVWPHQWV��)LQDQFH�	�,QWHUQDO�$XGLW��,),$��
¾� 3HRSOH�	�9DOXHV��3	9��
¾� &OLQLFDO�*RYHUQDQFH�	�3URIHVVLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV��&*36��
¾� &RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH��&*��
¾� '0+�6WDIIRUGVKLUH�(QWHUSULVHV�/WG�%RDUG��'0+6(/��
¾� '0+�6WDIIRUGVKLUH�/RWWHULHV�/WG�%RDUG��'0+6//��

7KH�WUXVWHHV�RQ�HDFK�VXEFRPPLWWHH�KDYH�UHOHYDQW�LQWHUHVWV�DQG�VNLOOV�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH\�HQKDQFH�WKH�ZRUN�RI�WKDW�FRPPLWWHH���$�
VFKHPH�RI�GHOHJDWLRQ�LV�LQ�SODFH�VR�WKDW�GD\�WR�GD\�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�WKH�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�FKDULW\��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�RSHUDWLRQDO�PDWWHUV��UHVWV�
ZLWK�WKH�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�DQG�WKH�([HFXWLYH�WHDP��ZKLFK�FXUUHQWO\�FRPSULVHV��

¾� &KLHI�([HFXWLYH�±�'DYLG�:HEVWHU�
¾� 'LUHFWRU�RI�&DUH�±�-DQQHWWH�0F&DUWQH\�
¾� 'LUHFWRU�RI�,QFRPH�*HQHUDWLRQ�±�.DUHQ�0F.HQ]LH�
¾� 'LUHFWRU�RI�+5�	�6XSSRUW�6HUYLFHV�±�&ULV�+DPPRQG�
¾� +HDG�RI�)LQDQFH�±�9LFNL�'HDQ�

%RWK�'0+6(/�DQG�'0+6//�GHYHORS�FRPPHUFLDO�DFWLYLWLHV�WR�VXSSRUW�WKH�FKDULW\�DQG�HDFK�FRYHQDQWV�LWV�VXUSOXV�WR�WKH�FKDULW\��DQG�
UHVXOWV�DUH�LQFOXGHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&RQVROLGDWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��

5LVN�0DQDJHPHQW

*RYHUQDQFH�RI�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH�LV�XQGHUSLQQHG�E\�D�WUDQVSDUHQW�FXOWXUH�RI�ULVN�HYDOXDWLRQ�DQG�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW��HQDEOLQJ�
WKH�%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV�WR�FRQVLGHU�DOO�ULVNV��ERWK�VWDWHG�DQG�HPHUJLQJ��DQG�IXOILOO�WKHLU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�ULVNV�IDFHG�E\�WKH�FKDULW\���$�
ULVN� UHJLVWHU� LGHQWLILHV� WKH�SRWHQWLDO� DQG�DFWXDO� ULVNV�� WKHLU�QDWXUH�� OLNHOLKRRG�DQG� LPSDFW�DQG� WKHQ�RXWOLQHV� WKH�PHDVXUHV� WDNHQ� WR�
PLWLJDWH�WKRVH�ULVNV���7UXVWHHV�UHYLHZ�WKH�ULVN�UHJLVWHU�IRUPDOO\�DW�%RDUG�PHHWLQJV�DV�ZHOO�DV�DVVHVVLQJ�DQG�XSGDWLQJ�LW�DW�DSSURSULDWH�
VXEFRPPLWWHHV��

7KH�PDLQ�ULVNV�WKDW�WKH�FKDULW\�IDFHV�DUH��
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D�� )LQDQFLDO�6XVWDLQDELOLW\
7KLV�LV�PLWLJDWHG�E\�RXU�UREXVW�IXQGUDLVLQJ�VWUDWHJ\��EXLOW�RYHU�PDQ\�\HDUV�RI�VXFFHVVIXO�H[SDQVLRQV�RI�GRQDWHG�LQFRPH��DQG�
E\�FXOWLYDWLQJ�H[FHOOHQW�UHODWLRQVKLSV�ZLWK�VWDWXWRU\�IXQGLQJ�SDUWQHUV�LQ�WKH�ORFDO�KHDOWK�HFRQRP\�

E�� 5HSXWDWLRQ
7KH�+RVSLFH�LV�KHOG�LQ�KLJK�UHJDUG�E\�ORFDO�SHRSOH�DQG�VWDNHKROGHU�SDUWQHUV�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�VR�IRU���\HDUV�EXW�SURWHFWLQJ�DQG�
SROLVKLQJ�RXU�UHSXWDWLRQ�UHTXLUHV�PLWLJDWLQJ�DFWLRQV��QRWDEO\�LQ�HQVXULQJ�WKDW�DOO�RXU�V\VWHPV��SURFHVVHV�DQG�VXSSRUW�OHDG�WR�
WKH�VXFFHVVIXO�UHFUXLWPHQW�UHWHQWLRQ�DQG�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�RXWVWDQGLQJ�SHRSOH�

F�� ,QWHUQDO�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH
,Q�D�UDSLGO\�FKDQJLQJ�HQYLURQPHQW�RXU�PLWLJDWLRQV�LQYROYHV�FRQWLQXDOO\�DVVHVVLQJ�DQG�PRGLI\LQJ�RXU�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��LQFOXGLQJ�
,�7���WR�FRQWHQG�ZLWK�FRQWHPSRUDU\�DQG�IXWXUH�QHHGV���&RVW�FRQWDLQPHQW�DQG�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�QHZ�DVVHWV�DUH�NHSW�LQ�EDODQFH�
E\�FRQVWDQW�PRQLWRULQJ��

5HVHUYHV�3ROLF\�

5HVHUYHV�DUH�KHOG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�FKDULW\�KDV�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�ZLWKVWDQG�DQ\�XQIRUHVHHQ�GURSV�LQ�LQFRPH��DQG�WR�SURYLGH�FDSLWDO�IRU�
IXWXUH�VWUDWHJLF�JURZWK��UHFRJQL]LQJ�WKDW�DFFHVV�WR�H[WHUQDO�FDSLWDO�LV�YHU\�OLPLWHG���7KH�%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV�LV�VDWLVILHG�WKDW�WKH�FXUUHQW�
OHYHO�RI�UHVHUYHV�SURYLGHV�DQ�DGHTXDWH�EXIIHU�DJDLQVW�ULVNV�WKDW�FDQQRW�EH�QHJDWHG�E\�RWKHU�PHDQV��ZKLOVW�XQGHUSLQQLQJ�WKH�VWUDWHJLF�
SODQ�IRU�WKH�IXWXUH�RI�WKH�KRVSLFH��

5HPXQHUDWLRQ�3ROLF\�

7KH�3HRSOH�	�9DOXHV�VXEFRPPLWWHH��ZKLFK�UHSRUWV�WR�WKH�%RDUG�RI�7UXVWHHV��RYHUVHHV�DOO�PDWWHUV�UHODWLQJ�WR�H[HFXWLYH�UHPXQHUDWLRQV�
DQG�VWDII�SD\�DQG�EHQHILWV���([WHUQDO�EHQFKPDUNV�DQG�ORFDO�PDUNHW�UDWHV�RI�SD\�DUH�XVHG�DV�FRPSDUDWLYHV�VR�WKDW�WKH�+RVSLFH�FDQ�
DWWUDFW�DQG�UHWDLQ�KLJK�TXDOLW\�VWDII� LQ�ERWK�FOLQLFDO�DQG�QRQ�FOLQLFDO�UROHV�� �$Q�DQQXDO�DSSUDLVDO�SURFHVV� LV� LQ�SODFH�WR�HYDOXDWH� MRE�
SHUIRUPDQFH�DW�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�OHYHO�DFURVV�WKH�RUJDQL]DWLRQ��

7UXVWHHV�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�LQ�5HODWLRQ�WR�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

7KH�FKDULW\¶V�WUXVWHHV��ZKR�DUH�DOVR�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�RI�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�FRPSDQ\�ODZ��DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�
IRU�SUHSDULQJ�D�WUXVWHHV�DQQXDO�UHSRUW�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ�DQG�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�$FFRXQWLQJ�
6WDQGDUGV��8.�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�SUDFWLFH���

&RPSDQ\�ODZ�UHTXLUHV�RXU�WUXVWHHV�WR�SUHSDUH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�HDFK�\HDU�ZKLFK�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�DIIDLUV�
RI�WKH�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�JURXS��DQG�RI�WKH� LQFRPLQJ�UHVRXUFHV�DQG�DSSOLFDWLRQV�RI�UHVRXUFHV�� LQFOXGLQJ�WKH� LQFRPH�DQG�
H[SHQGLWXUH�RI�WKH�FKDULWDEOH�JURXS�IRU�WKDW�SHULRG��

,Q�SUHSDULQJ�WKHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��WKH�WUXVWHHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR��

¾� 6HOHFW�VXLWDEOH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DQG�WKHQ�DSSO\�WKHP�FRQVLVWHQWO\�
¾� 2EVHUYH�WKH�PHWKRGV�DQG�SULQFLSOHV�LQ�WKH�&KDULWLHV�6WDWHPHQW�RI�5HFRPPHQGHG�3UDFWLFH��6253��
¾� 0DNH�MXGJHPHQWV�DQG�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWHV�WKDW�DUH�UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�SUXGHQW�
¾� 6WDWH�ZKHWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�8.�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�UHFRPPHQGHG�SUDFWLFH�KDYH�EHHQ�IROORZHG��VXEMHFW�WR�DQ\�

PDWHULDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV�GLVFORVHG�DQG�H[SODLQHG�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
¾� 3UHSDUH�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�XQOHVV�LW�LV�LQDSSURSULDWH�WR�SUHVXPH�WKDW�WKH�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\�

ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�RSHUDWH�

7KH� WUXVWHHV� DUH� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� NHHSLQJ� DGHTXDWH� DFFRXQWLQJ� UHFRUGV� WKDW� GLVFORVH� ZLWK� UHDVRQDEOH� DFFXUDF\� DW� DQ\� WLPH�� WKH�
ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI� WKH�FKDULW\�DQG� WR�HQVXUH� WKDW� WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�FRPSO\�ZLWK� WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������7KH\�DUH�DOVR�
UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�VDIHJXDUGLQJ�WKH�DVVHWV�RI�WKH�FKDULW\�DQG�WKH�JURXS��DQG�KHQFH�WDNH�UHDVRQDEOH�VWHSV�IRU�WKH�SUHYHQWLRQ�DQG�GHWHQWLRQ�
RI� IUDXG� DQG� RWKHU� LUUHJXODULWLHV�� � 7KH� WUXVWHHV� DUH� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� WKH�PDLQWHQDQFH� DQG� LQWHJULW\� RI� WKH� FRUSRUDWH� DQG� ILQDQFLDO�
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2SLQLRQ�

:H�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�'RXJODV�0DFPLOODQ�+RVSLFH�DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDULHV��WKH�µJURXS¶��IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG����0DUFK�
�����ZKLFK�FRPSULVH�WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�DFWLYLWLHV��WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�EDODQFH�VKHHW��WKH�FRQVROLGDWHG�FDVK�IORZ�
VWDWHPHQW� DQG�QRWHV� WR� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� LQFOXGLQJ�D� VXPPDU\�RI� VLJQLILFDQW�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV�� �7KH� ILQDQFLDO� UHSRUWLQJ�
IUDPHZRUN�WKDW�KDV�EHHQ�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKHLU�SUHSDUDWLRQ�LV�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ�DQG�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��LQFOXGLQJ�)LQDQFLDO�
5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUG�����7KH�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�6WDQGDUG�DSSOLFDEOH�LQ�WKH�8.�DQG�5HSXEOLF�RI�,UHODQG��8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�*HQHUDOO\�
$FFHSWHG�$FFRXQWLQJ�3UDFWLFH����

7KLV�UHSRUW�LV�PDGH�VROHO\�WR�WKH�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\¶V�PHPEHUV��DV�D�ERG\��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�&KDSWHU���RI�3DUW����RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�
$FW�������2XU�DXGLW�ZRUN�KDV�EHHQ�XQGHUWDNHQ�VR�WKDW�ZH�PLJKW�VWDWH�WR�WKH�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\¶V�PHPEHUV�WKRVH�PDWWHUV�ZH�DUH�
UHTXLUHG�WR�VWDWH�WR�WKHP�LQ�DQ�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�DQG�IRU�QR�RWKHU�SXUSRVH���7R�WKH�IXOOHVW�H[WHQW�SHUPLWWHG�E\�ODZ��ZH�GR�QRW�DFFHSW�RU�
DVVXPH�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�DQ\RQH�RWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\¶V�PHPEHUV DV�D�ERG\��IRU�RXU�DXGLW�
ZRUN��IRU�WKLV�UHSRUW��RU�IRU�WKH�RSLQLRQV�ZH�KDYH�IRUPHG��

,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

x� JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�WKH�JURXS¶V�DQG�SDUHQW�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\¶V�DIIDLUV�DV�DW����0DUFK�������DQG�RI�WKH�
JURXS¶V�LQFRPLQJ�UHVRXUFHV�DQG�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�UHVRXUFHV��LQFOXGLQJ�LWV�LQFRPH�DQG�H[SHQGLWXUH��IRU�WKH�\HDU�WKHQ�HQGHG��

x� KDYH�EHHQ�SURSHUO\�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�8QLWHG�.LQJGRP�*HQHUDOO\�$FFHSWHG�$FFRXQWLQJ�3UDFWLFH��DQG�

x� KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW�������

%DVLV�IRU�RSLQLRQ�

:H� FRQGXFWHG� RXU� DXGLW� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� ,QWHUQDWLRQDO� 6WDQGDUGV� RQ� $XGLWLQJ� �8.�� �,6$V� �8.��� DQG� DSSOLFDEOH� ODZ�� 2XU�
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�XQGHU�WKRVH�VWDQGDUGV�DUH�IXUWKHU�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�$XGLWRU¶V�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
VHFWLRQ�RI�RXU�UHSRUW���:H�DUH�LQGHSHQGHQW�RI�WKH�JURXS�DQG�SDUHQW�FKDULWDEOH�FRPSDQ\�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�HWKLFDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�
WKDW�DUH�UHOHYDQW�WR�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�8.��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�)5&¶V�(WKLFDO�6WDQGDUG��DQG�ZH�KDYH�IXOILOOHG�RXU�
RWKHU�HWKLFDO�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKHVH�UHTXLUHPHQWV���:H�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�ZH�KDYH�REWDLQHG�LV�VXIILFLHQW�
DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�EDVLV�IRU�RXU�RSLQLRQ��

&RQFOXVLRQV�UHODWLQJ�WR�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�

:H�KDYH�QRWKLQJ�WR�UHSRUW�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PDWWHUV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�,6$V��8.��UHTXLUH�XV�WR�UHSRUW�WR�\RX�ZKHUH��

x� WKH�WUXVWHHV¶�XVH�RI�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LV�QRW�DSSURSULDWH��RU�
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2018 2017 2018 2017
Notes £ £ £ £ 

Net cash provided by operating activities 28 356,180 (555,188) 376,916 (239,370)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 256,945 246,267 256,945 246,267 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (600,675) (254,049) (600,675) (316,039)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 30,840 30,840 
Proceeds from sale of investments - 500,000 - 500,000 
Purchase of investments (300,000) (300,000) - 

Net cash used in investing activities (612,890) 492,218 (612,890) 430,228 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period (256,710) (62,970) (235,974) 190,858 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 1,229,014 1,291,984 1,070,627 879,769 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 972,304 1,229,014     834,653 1,070,627 

The notes on pages 13 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Charity
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies

1a) Basis of preparation

1b)

1c) Income recognition

Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by donors, or which have been
raised by the charity for particular purposes.

These group financial statements consolidate the results of the charity and its wholly owned subsidiary undertakings for the year
ended 31 March 2018 on a line by line basis. The trading results of the subsidiary undertakings are shown in note 12.

For donations to be recognised the charity will have been notified of the amounts and the settlement date in writing. If there are
conditions attached to the donation and this requires a level of performance before entitlement can be obtained then income is
deferred until those conditions are fully met or the fulfilment of those conditions is within the control of the charity and it is
probable that they will be fulfilled.  

Gifts in kind donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale.
Where estimating the fair value is practicable upon receipt it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading activities’.
Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as
‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impracticable to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they
are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading
activities’.

All income is included in the Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) when the charity is legally entitled to the income after any
performance conditions have been met, the amount can be measured reliably and it is probable that the income will be received. 

Fixed asset gifts in kind are recognised in full when receivable and are included at fair value. 

No amount is included in the financial statements for volunteer time in line with the SORP (FRS 102). Further detail is given in
the Trustees’ Annual Report.  

Fund accounting
Unrestricted funds are available for use, at the discretion of the trustees, in furtherance of the general objectives of the charity
and which have been designated for other purposes:

The principal accounting policies adopted, judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty in the preparation of the
financial statements are as follows:

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, modified to include certain
items at fair value. The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional currency of the charity and rounded to
the nearest £1.

The charity constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102. The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing
their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
issued on 16 July 2014, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102),
the Charities Act 2011, the Companies Act 2006 and UK Generally Accepted Practice as it applies from 1 January 2015. 

A separate Statement of Financial Activities and Income and Expenditure Account for the charity has not been presented
because the Charity has taken advantage of the exemption afforded by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

Donated facilities and donated professional services are recognised in income at their fair value when their economic benefit is
probable, it can be measured reliably and the charity has control over the item. Fair value is determined on the basis of the value
of the gift to the charity. For example the amount the charity would be willing to pay in the open market for such facilities and
services. A corresponding amount is recognised in expenditure. 
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1c) Income recognition (Continued)

1d) Expenditure recognition

l

l

l

1e) Support costs allocation 

The analysis of these costs is included in note 8.

1f) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Expenditure on charitable activities includes the expenditure incurred relating to the Inpatient unit, the Medical
unit, the Day Hospice, the Community project, the CICU project, the Hospice at Home project, the Social work
project, the Education project and the carers support project; and

Costs of raising funds includes the expenditure incurred related to fundraising activities and the costs relating
to the trading subsidiaries;

All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related to
the category. Expenditure is recognised where there is a legal or constructive obligation to make payments to third parties, it is
probable that the settlement will be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. It is categorised under
the following headings:

Income from trading activities includes income earned from fundraising events and trading activities to raise funds for the charity.
Income is received in exchange for supplying goods and services in order to raise funds and is recognised when entitlement has
occurred. 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost (or deemed cost) or valuation less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.  Cost includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.

Investment income is earned through holding assets for investment purposes such as shares and property. It includes dividends,
interest and rent. Where it is not practicable to identify investment management costs incurred within a scheme with reasonable
accuracy the investment income is reported net of these costs. It is included when the amount can be measured reliably. Interest
income is recognised using the effective interest method and dividend and rent income is recognised as the charity’s right to
receive payment is established.

Legacies are recognised when both entitlement to receive the income has been established and when it is probable that the
income will be received. Receipt is assessed to be probable when: there has been grant of probate; and the executors have
established that there are sufficient assets in the estate, after settling any liabilities, to pay the legacy. Legacies are measured at
the fair value of income receivable based on available information.

Other expenditure represents those items not falling into the categories above. 

Irrecoverable VAT is charged as an expense against the activity for which expenditure arose. 

Support costs are those that assist the work of the charity but do not directly represent charitable activities and include finance
costs, governance costs, information technology costs, corporate services, facilities costs, non-attributable depreciation, and
general overheads. They are incurred directly in support of expenditure on the objects of the charity. Where support costs cannot
be directly attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to expenditure on charitable activities on an apportioned
basis related to the expenditure as a percentage of total expenditure. 

Fund-raising costs are those incurred in seeking voluntary contributions and do not include the costs of disseminating information 
in support of the charitable activities. 
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1f) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated
Freehold buildings 3% p.a. straight line
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 25% p.a. straight line and reducing balance
Motor vehicles 25% p.a. reducing balance

1g) Stock

Donated stocks are fair valued as described in section 1c) above.

1h) Financial instruments

Other financial assets, including short term highly liquid investments are initially measured at fair value, with subsequent changes
in fair value recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. These include cash on deposit and cash equivalents with a
maturity of less than one year. 

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at cost less impairment.

Basic financial assets, which include debtors, and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price including
transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial assets classified
as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its
liabilities.

15

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting end date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss
is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or when 
the charitable company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity, or
if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is
able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

ii) Financial liabilities

Stock is stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost includes all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing stock to its present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in, first-out formula.  Provision is made for damaged, obsolete and slow-moving stock where appropriate.

The charitable company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other
Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

Financial instruments are recognised in the charitable company's balance sheet when the charitable company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

i) Financial assets

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of
each asset on a systematic basis over its expected useful life as follows:



DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies (continued)

1h) Financial instruments (continued)

1i) Provisions

1j) Leases

1k) Pensions

1l) Tax

1m) Going concern

The charity operates a defined contribution plan for the benefit of its employees. Contributions are expensed as they become
payable.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. Trade creditors are
recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the company’s contractual obligations expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans and loans from fellow group companies that are classified as debt, are
initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is
measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as
payable within one year are not amortised. 

The charity also operates a defined benefit scheme which is closed to new members. The contributions made to the scheme are
as recommended by the Scheme Trustees and the independent actuary. The regular cost of providing retirement pensions and
related benefits is charged to the statement of financial activities over the employees' service lives on the basis of a constant
percentage of earnings. 

Provisions are recognised when the charity has an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount can be reliably estimated.

The charity is an exempt charity within the meaning of schedule 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is considered to pass the tests
set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK
corporation tax purposes. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the trustees believe that no material uncertainties
exist. The trustees have considered the level of funds held and the expected level of income and expenditure for 12 months from
authorising these financial statements. The budgeted income and expenditure is sufficient with the level of reserves for the
charity to be able to continue as a going concern.  

Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the expected useful
life of the asset. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
lease liability using the effective interest method.  The related obligations, net of future finance charges, are included in creditors.

Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are charged to the SOFA on a straight line basis over the period of the
lease.

When employees have rendered service to the charity, short-term employee benefits to which the employees are entitled are
recognised at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2 Donations and legacies
Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £

Donations and gifts 1,403,831 - 18,839 1,422,670 1,762,439 
Legacies - 1,479,205 30,000 1,509,205 1,196,591 
Department of Health 53,688 - - 53,688 53,688 

1,457,519 1,479,205 48,839 2,985,563 3,012,718 

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Unrestricted funds 1,791,198 
Designated funds 1,077,824 
Restricted funds 143,696 

3,012,718 

3 Income from charitable activities
Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £

Charitable activities 2,584,475 - - 2,584,475 2,811,708 

Included within income relating to charitable activities are: Clinical Commissioning Group 2,379,886 2,492,354 

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Unrestricted funds 2,811,708 
Designated funds - 
Restricted funds - 

2,811,708 

4 Income from other trading activities
Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds 2018 2017
£ £ £ £ £

Fundraising events 1,238,007 - - 1,238,007 1,120,585 
Income from commercial activities:

- Charity shops 2,718,816 - - 2,718,816 1,943,608 
- Lottery 1,477,510 - - 1,477,510 1,478,748 

5,434,333 - - 5,434,333 4,542,941 

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Unrestricted funds 4,542,941 
Designated funds - 
Restricted funds - 

4,542,941 
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

5 Investment income 2018 2017
£ £

Income from listed investments 255,543 241,724 
Interest receivable 1,402 4,543 

256,945 246,267 

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Unrestricted funds 246,267 
Designated funds - 
Restricted funds - 

246,267 

6 Analysis of costs of raising funds

Direct Support Total Total
costs costs 2018 2017

£ £ £ £
Fundraising Costs 616,015 - 616,015 667,984 
Costs of commercial activities:

- Charity shops 1,627,157 -                    1,627,157 1,381,973 
- Lottery 652,029 -                    652,029 664,870 

2,895,201 - 2,895,201 2,714,827 

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Unrestricted funds 2,714,827 
Designated funds - 
Restricted funds - 

2,714,827 

7 Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities
Direct Support Total Total
costs costs 2018 2017

£ £ £ £
Inpatient 2,208,178 1,102,610 3,310,788 3,378,074 
Medical 605,938 314,933 920,871 838,564 
Day hospice 490,604 242,884 733,488 575,788 
Community 1,352,578 684,574 2,037,152 2,013,370 
Hospice at home 549,350 272,663 822,013 632,897 
Social work 331,260 168,337 499,597 554,468 
Education 188,181 96,814 284,995 423,857 

5,726,089 2,882,815 8,608,904 8,417,018 

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Unrestricted funds 8,028,577 
Designated funds 332,180 
Restricted funds 56,261 

8,417,018 
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

8 Allocation of support costs

Inpatient Medical Day Hospice Community
£ £ £ £

Governance 38,511          10,862          8,507               23,806             
Finance 141,916        40,704          31,234             88,224             
Information technology 106,840        30,281          23,575             66,202             
Corporate services 207,439        58,865          45,761             128,493           
Facilities 231,165        66,412          50,858             48,332             
Depreciation 149,490        41,582          33,119             91,980             
General overheads 173,567        50,551          38,062             203,960           
Defined benefit pension shortfall contributions 53,682          15,676          11,768             33,577             

1,102,610     314,933        242,884           684,574           

Allocation of support costs (Continued)
Hospice Social Total
at home work Education 2018

£ £ £ £
Governance 9,542            5,847            3,350               100,425           
Finance 35,073          21,705          12,498             371,354           
Information technology 26,452          16,255          9,326               278,931           
Corporate services 51,349          31,577          18,124             541,608           
Facilities 57,115          35,380          20,383             509,645           
Depreciation 37,116          22,558          12,868             388,713           
General overheads 42,786          26,739          15,474             551,139           
Defined benefit shortfall contributions 13,230          8,276            4,791               141,000           

272,663        168,337        96,814             2,882,815        

9 Analysis of governance costs 2018 2017
£ £

Salaries, wages and related costs Allocated on time basis 28,517 24,320 
Audit fees (parent company) Cost incurred 7,500 6,750 
Premises costs 1.125% of total premises costs 16,992 15,573 
Overheads 10% of overheads not included above 47,416 39,746 

100,425 86,389 

10 Net income / (expenditure) for the year 2018 2017
£ £

Net income / (expenditure) is stated after charging:
Depreciation 388,713 372,846 
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 1,286 - 
Auditors' remuneration (group) - audit services 16,500 17,232 
Auditors' remuneration (group) - non audit services 8,640 4,809 
Operating lease charges - buildings 213,077 196,375 

Support costs are allocated in proportion to total expenditure. Salary, wages and related costs are allocated to the charitable
activities undertaken on the basis of the direct salary, wages and related costs incurred by each charitable activities. Other non-
salary support costs are allocated to the charitable activities undertaken on the basis of the total salary costs and direct costs
incurred by each charitable activity.
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DOUGLAS MACMILLAN HOSPICE (A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

11 Financial activities of the charity 2018 2017
£ £

Gross income 10,525,035 10,259,142 
Total expenditure on charitable activities (8,636,902) (8,474,016)
Fundraising costs (2,192,468) (2,023,821)
Unrealised (losses) / gains on investment assets (62,089) 484,902 
Net income/ (expenditure) (366,424) 246,207 
Total funds brought forward excluding pension reserve 14,282,236 14,036,029 
Total funds carried forward excluding pension reserve 13,915,812 14,282,236 
Represented by:
Unrestricted income funds 3,317,341 2,641,681 
Designated income funds 9,983,315 10,836,238 
Restricted income funds 615,156 804,317 

13,915,812 14,282,236 

12 Trading subsidiaries

Name of subsidiary

Douglas Macmillan Hospice Staffordshire Lotteries Limited
Sunflower Home Care Limited 

Douglas Macmillan Hospice Staffordshire Enterprises Limited 
Summary of trading results 2018 2017

£ £
Turnover 87,809 29,694 
Total expenditure (50,703) (26,136)
Other income - - 

Net profit for the year 37,106 3,558 
Amount gifted to charity (37,106) (3,558)

Retained profit - - 

The turnover from this entity is consolidated within total charity shop income reported in note 4 of these accounts.

The assets and liabilities of the Douglas Macmillan Hospice Staffordshire Enterprises Limited were:
Assets 17,362 50,200 
Liabilities (17,360) (50,198)
Funds 2 2 

Douglas Macmillan Hospice Staffordshire Lotteries Limited
Summary of trading results 2018 2017

£ £
Turnover 1,477,510 1,478,748 
Total expenditure (652,030) (664,870)

Net profit for the year 825,480 813,878 
Amount paid to charity (825,480) (813,878)

Retained profit - - 

The assets and liabilities of the Douglas Macmillan Hospice Staffordshire Lotteries Limited were:
Assets 233,317 228,089 
Liabilities (233,315) (228,087)
Funds 2 2 

Douglas Macmillan Hospice Staffordshire Enterprises Limited
100

England & Wales
England & Wales

100England & Wales

100
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Country of incorporation

The charity controls the companies listed below by virtue of holding a controlling interest in the equity share capital:-

% of equity share capital held
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12 Trading subsidiaries (continued)

Sunflower Home Care Limited 
Summary of trading results 2018 2017

£ £
Turnover - - 
Total expenditure - - 
Other income - - 
Amount released from parent company loan - - 
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year - - 

The assets and liabilities of the Sunflower Home Care Limited were:
Assets 1,717 9,013 
Liabilities (1,717) (9,013)
Deficiency in funds - - 

13 Investment in Joint Venture
2018 2017 2018 2017

£ £ £ £

Investment in joint venture 7,690 7,690 7,690 7,690 

The group has an investment in the following joint venture: Proportion of
ordinary shares

held
%

Palliative Care Solutions Limited 50%

14 Analysis of staff costs, trustee remuneration and expenses, and the cost of key management personnel

The total staff costs and employees benefits were:
2018 2017

£ £
Wages and salaries 7,256,495 6,999,011 
Social security costs 596,306 587,995 
Pension costs 905,992 896,842 

8,758,793 8,483,848 

2018 2017
Number Number

£60,001 to £70,000 1                      2                      
£70,001 to £80,000 3                      2                      
£80,001 to £90,000 -                       -                       
£90,001 to £100,000 -                       -                       
£100,001 to £110,000 1                      -                       

Group

The number of employees who received total employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) of more than £60,000 is as
follows:

Charity

Palliative Care Solutions Limited is a trading company incorporated in England and Wales. This company has now ceased
trading and there are plans to liquidate. The company has made a loss in the year of £Nil (2017:£4,620). The investment in
Palliative Care has been impaired by £Nil (2017: £2,310) so that the carrying value of £7,690 represents the Group's share of
funds receivable when the company is liquidated.
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14 Analysis of staff costs, trustee remuneration and expenses, and the cost of key management personnel (continued)

  
2018 2018 2017 2017

Number FTE Number FTE
Raising funds 94 72 95 67
Charitable activities 292 212 294 204
Governance 1 1 1 1

387 285 390 272 

The trustees neither received nor waived any remuneration during the year (2017:£Nil).

The trustees did not have any expenses reimbursed during the year (2017:£Nil).

The charity has received no donations with conditions from the trustees during the year (2017:£Nil).

15 Pension costs
FPS defined benefit scheme

The charity contributes to a defined benefit scheme and the details are in note 21.

Contributions are made in accordance with the annual recommendations of a qualified independent actuary.

The contributions to this scheme in the year were £79,962 (2017: £84,398). Also during the year shortfall payments in 
respect of a recovery plan have been paid totalling £141,000 (2017: £141,000).

Contributions are also made to a second plan (FPS Federated Flexiplan) in accordance with actuarial recommendations.

NHS defined benefit scheme

The contributions to this scheme in the year were £283,112 (2017: £317,916).

Aviva/Nest defined contribution scheme

The contributions to these schemes in the year were £380,303 (2017: £339,678).

The key management personnel of the charity comprise the trustees, the Chief Executive Officer, the Medical Director, the
Director of Care, the Director of Income Generation and the Director of Human Resources and and support services. The total
employee benefits of the key management personnel of the charity were £361,189 (2017: £307,254).

22

The charity also contributes to defined contribution schemes in respect of employees who do not qualify for the FPS scheme or
the NHS scheme.

The charity also contributes to the NHS Pension Scheme, which is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS
employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The
scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets
and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

The average monthly number of employees and full time equivalent (FTE) during the year was as follows:

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as
at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with
updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for
financial reporting purposes. The valuation of scheme liability as at 31 March 2018, is based on valuation data as At 31 March
2017, updated to 31 March 2018 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment,
the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have
also been used.
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16 Tangible fixed assets
Group and company Land and Fixtures, Total

buildings fittings &
equipment

£ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2017 8,086,046 2,507,878 10,593,924 
Additions 292,419 308,256 600,675 
Disposals - (67,448) (67,448)
At 31 March 2018 8,378,465 2,748,686 11,127,151 

Depreciation
At 1 April 2017 2,605,433 2,232,163 4,837,596 
Charge for the year 251,390 137,323 388,713 
Disposals - (35,321) (35,321)
At 31 March 2018 2,856,823 2,334,165 5,190,988 

Net book value
At 31 March 2018 5,521,642 414,521 5,936,163 

At 31 March 2017 5,480,613 275,715 5,756,328 

17 Fixed asset investments Cash Listed Unlisted Total 2017
inv. inv.

£ £ £ £ £
Market value at 1 April 2017 5,870,464     7,690            5,878,154 5,893,251 
Additions at cost (6,217,462) 6,217,462 - - - 
Cash added to portfolio 300,000        - - 300,000 - 
Disposals at carrying value 6,008,196 (6,008,196) - - (500,000)
Change in value in the year -                (62,089) - (62,089) 484,903 
Market value at 31 March 2018 90,734 6,017,641 7,690 6,116,065 5,878,154 

Historical cost at 31st March 2018 90,734 6,217,462 7,690 6,315,886 4,911,005 

The following investments made up more than 5% each of the total market value of listed investments or bonds at 31 
March 2018:

2018 2017
£ £

Vanguard INV UK FTSE UK All Share IDX Unit 301,003 - 
Vanguard Funds PLC S&P 500 515,811 - 
M & G Charibond Income share - 510,923 
M & G Charibond - 1,680,004 
CCLA COIF Charities Fixed Interest Fund - 1,304,182 
CCLA Property Fund - 944,290 
Newton Global Growth Fund - 852,325 
Blackrock Common Fund - 578,740 

Summary of Investments
2018 2017 2018 2017

£ £ £ £
Investment in subsidiary companies -                    -                    5                      5                      
Other investments 6,116,065     5,878,154     6,116,065        5,878,154        

6,116,065     5,878,154     6,116,070        5,878,159        

Group Charity
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18 Stock
2018 2017 2018 2017

£ £ £ £
Stock in hand 8,931            9,917            -                       -                       

8,931            9,917            -                       -                       

19 Debtors
2018 2017 2018 2017

£ £ £ £
Trade debtors 35,274 20,796 34,318 20,796 
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - - 48,786 
Other debtors 1,358,488 1,804,511 1,357,132 1,803,155 
Prepayments and accrued income 62,420 55,601 62,420 54,558 

1,456,182 1,880,908 1,453,870 1,927,295 

20 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2018 2017 2018 2017

£ £ £ £

Trade creditors 183,384 207,087 179,752 203,364 
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 126,164 111,185 
Amounts owed to joint venture 10,030 10,030 10,030 10,030 
Other creditors 258,898 234,191 29,025 13,236 
Accruals and deferred income 84,417 17,219 79,973 12,358 

536,729 468,527 424,944 350,173 

21 Pension and other post-retirement benefit commitments
Employee benefit obligations

2018 2017
a) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: £ £

Present value of funded obligations 11,149,000 11,042,000 
Fair value of plan assets (8,900,000) (8,908,000)
Deficit 2,249,000 2,134,000 

Present value of unfunded obligations - - 
Unrecognised past service cost - - 
Irrecoverable surplus - - 

Net pension liability recognised before tax 2,249,000 2,134,000 

b) The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost included in staff costs within total resources expended 143,000 117,000 
Past service cost - 7,000 

143,000 124,000 

Net pension finance costs included within total resources expended:
Interest on obligation 271,000 311,000 
Expected return on pension scheme assets (221,000) (260,000)

50,000 51,000 

Total 193,000 175,000 

Actual return on scheme assets over the period 154,000 1,542,000 

Charity

Charity

Group

Defined benefit pension plans

CharityGroup
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21 Pension and other post-retirement benefit commitments (continued)

c) Included with other recognised gains and losses: 2018 2017
£ £

Return on assets, excluding interest income (67,000) 1,282,000 
Impact of surplus restrictions - - 
Change in irrecoverable surplus - - 
Actuarial gains/(losses) on liabilities (76,000) (1,849,000)

(143,000) (567,000)

d) Changes in the present value of the scheme liabilities:
2018 2017

£ £
Opening liabilities 11,042,000 9,524,000 
Current service cost 143,000 117,000 
Past service cost - 7,000 
Interest cost 271,000 311,000 
Contribution by scheme participants 33,000 35,000 
Actuarial (gains) / Losses 76,000 1,849,000 
Benefits paid (416,000) (801,000)

11,149,000 11,042,000 

e) Changes in fair value of the scheme assets: £ £

Opening fair value of scheme assets 8,908,000 7,900,000 
Expected return 221,000 260,000 
Actuarial gains (67,000) 1,282,000 
Contributions by employer 221,000 232,000 
Contributions from scheme participants 33,000 35,000 
Benefits paid (416,000) (801,000)

8,900,000 8,908,000 

f) The major categories of scheme assets are as follows:
2018 2017

£ £

Equity 3,118,000 3,215,000 
Bonds 3,760,000 3,717,000 
Diversified funds 1,955,000 1,908,000 
Cash 47,000 45,000 
Annuity contracts 20,000 23,000 

8,900,000 8,908,000 

g) Principal actuarial assumptions used by the actuary the balance sheet date
2018 2017

% %
Discount rate at 31 March 2.50 2.50
Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.10 3.20
Rate of inflation (CPI) 2.30 2.40
Rate of salary increase 2.50 2.50
Rate of increase to pensions in payment
- Pre 1997 (Discretionary) 0.00 0.00
- 1997 - 2009 (RPI max 5%) 3.00 3.10
- Post 2009 (RPI max 2.5%) 2.10 2.10
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21 Pension and other post-retirement benefit commitments (continued)

g) Principal actuarial assumptions used by the actuary the balance sheet date (continued)

Expected life expectancies on retirement at age 65 are: 2018 2017
Years Years

Males retiring immediately 20.20 20.40
Females retiring immediately 23.40 23.50
Males retiring in 20 years time 22.10 22.20
Females retiring in 20 years time 25.30 25.40

22 Financial commitments

Commitments under operating leases

2018 2018 2017 2017
Land & Land &

buildings Other buildings Other
Group: £ £ £ £
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 9,601 4,375 1,399 
Between two and five years 498,561 26,467 334,675 2,953 
After five years 330,833 - 369,250 - 

838,995 26,467 708,300 4,352 

2018 2018 2017 2017
Land & Land &

buildings Other buildings Other
Company: £ £ £ £
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 1,875 - 1,399 
Between two and five years 373,561 26,467 188,959 2,953 
After five years 176,667 - 196,667 - 

552,103 26,467 385,626 4,352 

23 Capital commitments

2018 2017
£ £

Contracted, not provided for -                       -                       
-                       -                       

24 Company limited by guarantee

As at 31 March 2018 the group was committed to making the following payments under non-cancellable operating leases as set
out below:

Group and 
Company

Group and 
Company

Douglas Macmillan Hospice is a company limited by guarantee and accordingly does not have a share capital. Every member of
the company undertakes to contribute such amount as may be required not exceeding £10 to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of its being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a
member.
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25 Restricted funds

Balances at Incoming Resources Balances at
1 April 2017 resources expended Transfers 31 March 2018

£ £ £ £ £
Specific purposes 804,317 48,839 (20,632) (217,368) 615,156 

Purposes of the funds

26 Designated funds

Balances at Incoming Resources Balances at
1 April 2017 resources expended Transfers 31 March 2018

£ £ £ £
Fixed assets fund 5,756,328 - (388,713) 568,548 5,936,163 
Legacy equalisation fund 4,287,555 1,479,205 - (1,719,608) 4,047,152 
Hospice at Home fund 795,913 - - (795,913) - 

10,839,796 1,479,205 (388,713) (1,946,973) 9,983,315 

27

The transfer to the fixed asset fund is in respect of fixed asset additions in the year now designated by the trustees as part of the
fixed asset fund and also fixed assets transferred from restricted funds.

The transfer from the legacy fund is to reflect the amount transferred to unrestricted income previously designated by the
trustees. The amount is calculated on the multi year average of legacy income.

Movement in funds

The legacy equalisation fund has been designated by the trustees to provide for expenditure in future years. The trustees
recognise the unpredictable nature of this source of income and have set aside funds to provide for expenditure not covered by
income from other sources.

The income funds of the charity includes the following designated funds which have been set aside out of unrestricted funds by
the trustees for specific purposes:

Specific purposes represents various donations made where the donors have asked that the monies be utilised to fund a specific
aspect of the hospice's activities or to purchase particular items of equipment.

The fixed assets fund has been set up to assist in identifying those funds that are not free funds and it represents the net book
value of all assets.

Movement in funds

The income funds of the charity include restricted funds comprising the following unexpended balances of donations and grants
held for specific purposes:

The Hospice at Home fund was established to provide finance for the continued provision of the hospice at home service.  The 
transfer from this fund represents the cost incurred operating this service during the year.
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27 Analysis of group net assets between funds

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total
funds funds funds

£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 March 2018 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - 5,936,163 - 5,936,163 
Investments 3,305,129 2,810,936 - 6,116,065 
Current assets 586,045 1,236,216 615,156 2,437,417 
Current liabilities (536,729) - - (536,729)

3,354,445 9,983,315 615,156 13,952,916 
Pension reserve (2,249,000) - - (2,249,000)

Group net assets 1,105,445 9,983,315 615,156 11,703,916 

28 Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash flow from operating activities

2018 2017 2018 2017
£ £ £ £

Net income for the reporting period (447,878) (600,308) (481,426) (263,791)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation charges 388,713 372,846 388,713 372,846 
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 1,288 - 1,288 - 
(Gains)/ losses on investments 62,089 (484,903) 62,089 (484,903)
Actuarial losses/ (gain) 143,000 567,000 143,000 567,000 
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (256,945) (246,267) (256,945) (246,267)
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions (28,000) (57,000) (28,000) (57,000)
Decrease/ (Increase) in stocks 986 26,534 - 20,303 
Decrease/ (increase) in debtors 424,727 131,607 473,426 92,314 
(Decrease)/ increase in creditors 68,200 (264,697) 74,771 (239,872)
Net cash provided by operating activities 356,180 (555,188) 376,916 (239,370)

29 Analysis of net cash balances
1 April Cash flow Non-cash 31 March

2017 changes 2018
£ £ £ £

Cash at bank and in hand 1,229,014 (256,710) - 972,304 
Fixed asset investments 5,878,154 300,000 (62,089) 6,116,065 

7,107,168 43,290 (62,089) 7,088,369 

28
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30 Financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the charity's financial instruments are as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017
Notes £ £ £ £

Financial assets

Measured at fair value through net income / expenditure:
Fixed asset listed investments 17 6,116,065 5,878,154 6,116,070 5,878,159 

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost:
Trade debtors 19 35,274 20,796 34,318 20,796 
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 19 - - - 48,786 
Amounts owed by joint venture 19 - - - - 
Other debtors 19 1,358,488 1,804,511 1,357,132 1,803,155 

1,393,762 1,825,307 1,391,450 1,872,737 

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost
Trade creditors 20 183,384 207,087 179,752 203,364 
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 20 - - 126,164 111,185 
Amounts owed to joint venture 20 10,030 10,030 10,030 10,030 
Other creditors 20 258,898 234,191 29,025 13,235 
Taxes and Social security 20 - - - - 
Accruals and deferred income 20 84,417 17,219 79,973 12,358 

536,729 468,527 424,944 350,172 

2018 2017 2018 2017
Notes £ £ £ £

17 (62,089) 484,903 (62,089) 484,903 

12 - - - - 

31 Funds held on behalf of third Parties

32 Related party transactions

There were no related party transactions during the year (2017: £Nil).

29

Douglas Macmillan Hospice is providing administrative services to Symptom Control in Palliative Care. As part of this service
Douglas Macmillan Hospice receives an administration fee.

The income, expenses, net gains and net losses attributable to the charity's financial instruments are summarised as follows:

Group Charity

Financial assets measured at fair value through 
net income / expenditure

Neither income nor the expenditure (with the exception of the administrative fee income) has been accounted for in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Balances held in these bank accounts at the year end do not form part of the charity's assets
and are not included in the balance sheet.

Financial assets (debt instruments) measured at
amortised cost:

Group Charity
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Application for  

  
Grant Aid  

  

Name of organisation:  

 1st Oulton Scout Group 

  

 

Purpose of organisation:  

  

1st Oulton Scout Group is one of the fastest-growing Scout groups in the West Midlands region and was set up in 

2014 in response to local need in Stone and the surrounding villages. It is so important that children and teenagers 

have access to affordable, local activities. Here at 1st Oulton, our Beavers, Cubs and Scouts find excitement and 

adventure with activities that take them outdoors and, in a friendly, inclusive environment, help them to develop 

life-building skills – consideration for others, teamwork and resilience – to say nothing of practical skills like 

orienteering and first aid. 

 

Amount of grant requested:  

  

 £500 

  

Total cost of project (if appropriate):  

 

£600 

Reason for grant request:  

  

Because 1st Oulton Scouts has grown so rapidly, we have run out of storage space! We badly need a new storeroom 

and would be very grateful to be able to afford a new, metal shed.  

 

 

Benefits to Stone residents:  

  

Although 1st Oulton also serves the village community, the larger proportion of our Beavers, Cubs and Scouts live in 

Stone. Every Friday night in term-time, the group provides activities for boys and girls aged 6-8 (Beavers), 8-10 

(Cubs) and 10-14 (Scouts). We also organise weekend camps both locally at Kibblestone and, last year, even to 

Brownsea Island, the birthplace of the Scout movement.  

 

Here there is the opportunity for Stone children to forge new friendships beyond those they have at school. (This 

can be particularly reassuring for them later on when moving from middle school to the new environment at 

Alleynes.) 

  

1st Oulton also brings together volunteers from across Stone Town and the villages – parents, grandparents and 

community members – and this builds relationships across the whole community. These volunteers also benefit the 

Scout Group with a rich diversity of skills and creative ideas.   
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Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known):  

  

The proposal is to allocate £100 of our Gift Aid savings towards the cost. In addition, our children participate in a 

number of fundraising activities over the course of the year, including our stall at the Village Fete. 

  

Is this an “exceptional” request (see notes)?  If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception:  

  

 n/a  

  

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding:  

  

 We have not applied for or received any funding from the Council in the last two years. 

  

  

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable):  

  

 n/a 

  

  

  

  

  

    

    



Treasurers report for 1st Oulton Scout Group 
from July 2017 to July 2018

Monies in
Subs in total = £5394.  this breaks down to the 3 
terms 
Autumn = £1659.
Spring = £1708.
Summer = £2027.
Gift aid application from April 2017 to March 2018= 

£1237.88
Total revenue received £6631.88

Monies out
Hire of the village hall and website for 12 month 
period = £1056.
Capitation = £1795.
Badges = £171.67
Utilities = £394.11
Insurance for scout hut = £178.
Equipment = £272.
OMS system=£50.
Monies paid to section = £1570.
Total revenue spent = £5486.78

Money remaining £ 1,145.10   

This will be paid out in August  2018 to cover new 
cladding on the scout hut



 

 

  

Stone Scout and Guide Band 

In essence the Scout and Guide movement prepares young people with skills 

for life.   The Scout and Guide Band brings together the Scouts and Guides in 

the Stone area to learn teamwork, self-discipline and musical skills.  The Band is 

a great ambassador for Stone. 

£500.00 £2250.00 (estimated) 

One of the most effective ways to encourage the young people who are members 

of the band, and their supporters, is participation in band competitions.  The Band 

has recently achieved notable success in such competitions and, in doing so, has 

promoted very effectively the name of Stone. 

The Band will compete in the Traditional Youth Marching Bands Association 

(TYMBA) competition at Whale Island, Portsmouth, over the weekend 20-22 

September 2019.  The grant would help make participation in this event more 

affordable to the band members. 

The Band itself does not have funds to provide such assistance.  



 

 

A direct benefit will be to the young people who are members of the Band and 

whose participation in the competition will be helped.   

The town of Stone will benefit from the promotion of the Town that will result from 

participation in this competition. 

Support of the Scout and Guide movement assists in the meeting of the aims of the 

movement which in turn strengthens the local community now and in the future.  

The National Lottery ’Awards for All’ programme has been approached for help with 

transport costs (quoted at £1750 for the weekend).     

We have applied to Awards for All for the transport cost, however it is not certain we 

will hear back in time, so I’m still looking for other sources of funding (would be 

eternally grateful for assistance with this). 

 

We’ll be looking at the People Helping People fund when it goes live shortly.………. 

Not applicable.      

In 2018, a small grant to cover the cost of using the FJC whilst the Pumphouse 

was out of use for building repairs.       

Not applicable.      
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Application for  

  
Grant Aid  

  

Name of organisation:  

 STING – Staffordshire Therapeutic Independent 

Neurological Group.  
  

 

Purpose of organisation:  

  

 To support residents of the local community to 

optimise their recovery or to live well with differing 

neurological conditions. 
  

  

  

  

  

  

 

Amount of grant requested:  

  

 £1000 
  

Total cost of project (if appropriate):  



Reviewed and updated June 2018    Page 2  

Reason for grant request:  

  

 STING is an inclusive group of people that meet together to support each other in their activities and 

socially.  

Many people with, among others, Parkinsons, MD, MS, CVA and Dementia find it difficult to access the 

community where they will be accepted and encouraged to stretch themselves. 

 

STING offers a different therapy every day. 

There is sitting TAI Chi which benefits relaxation, mobility and balance. 

A neuro-physiotherapist provides two sessions, one is based on the individual and their strengths and 

areas to improve, ensuring exercises given are safe and appropriate. 

This stretches the individual to maintain or increase their potential. 

Other sessions are group sessions with activities around mobility etc. 

All sessions are very social, which is a very important part of STING. There are social gatherings in the 

base at Whitebridge Estate, days out, dinners and parties. Members pay for these independently.  

The cost of the base has increased over the years and STING is in danger of not being able to meet their 

financial commitments later in the year. 

We were required to obtain a new lift which is essential for access to wheelchairs.  

The physio equipment is showing signs of wear, there is equipment out there which would benefit the 

members. 

STING do fundraise, however as the group is made up of people with challenges this can prove difficult.  

Any support, for this local group. Would be very much appreciated. 

 

Benefits to Stone residents:  

  

 Any person who lives in Stone and outlying areas are welcome to attend the group.  

People who live alone would benefit from the social side and also help with movement/exercises.  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 Supermarket Collections – amount unknown 
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Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known): £500.00 High Sherriff 

 

  

Is this an “exceptional” request (see notes)?  If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: 

 

Yes it is an opportunity to create a unique service in our community linking in with the hospital and other support 

groups 

  

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding:  

  

£500 was awarded by Stone Town Council on 5 February 2019 for the replacement of essential equipment used by 

the charity. 

 

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable):  
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018
 
The trustees present their report with the financial statements of the charity for the year ended 31st March 2018.  The
trustees have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended  Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in  the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015).

The unit has continued to flourish and be well supported over the last 12 months. We have five appointed trustees and  a
committee with different roles who meet on a regular basis. 

Objectives and activities
Objectives and aims
To help the residents of Stone and outlying areas who suffer from neurological conditions improve their quality of life. 

Achievement and performance
We have consolidated our member base and introduced new sessions so the unit is now utilised fully for 5 days a week. 

Financial review
Income
The balance of our two accounts as at 31 March 2018 stands at £29,872.
Members are charged an annual nominal fee.
We have five sessions a week of Tai Chi, exercise and physio.
We arrange fundraising and social events throughout the year.
Our other income comes from room hire, donations and grants.
Unfortunately we have lost our major sponsor (screwfix).

Expenditure
Our main expense this last year has been the replacement of the stairlift costing £8,330.
Our other main expenses are rent and utility bills.
No members or trustees gain any financial reward for their work. 

Future plans
The unit hopes to continue to help the disadvantaged in society. 

Structure, governance and management
Governing document
The charity is controlled by its governing documents, a deed of trust, and constitutes a charitable  incorporated
organisation. 

Reference and administrative details
Registered Charity number
1161045

Principal address
Unit 22b
Whitebridge Industrial Estate
Stone
Staffordshire
ST15 8LQ

Trustees
M J Clayton 
L Paxton 
Miss R J Clayton 
A Taylerson 
A B Ward 
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018
 
Reference and administrative details
Independent examiner
B S Baggaley FCA
Hardings
Chartered Accountants
6 Marsh Parade
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire
ST5 1DU

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 28th January 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

M J Clayton  - Trustee
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Independent Examiner's Report to the Trustees of
STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Independent examiner's report to the trustees of STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic Independent  Neurological
Group)
I report to the charity trustees on my examination of the accounts of the STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic  Independent
Neurological Group) (the Trust) for the year ended 31st March 2018.

Responsibilities and basis of report
As the charity trustees of the Trust you are responsible for the preparation of the accounts in accordance with  the
requirements of the Charities Act 2011 ('the Act'). 

I report in respect of my examination of the Trust's accounts carried out under section 145 of the Act and in carrying  out
my examination I have followed all applicable Directions given by the Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b)  of
the Act.

Independent examiner's statement
I have completed my examination. I confirm that no material matters have come to my attention in connection with  the
examination giving me cause to believe that in any material respect:

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the Trust as required by section 130 of the Act; or
2. the accounts do not accord with those records; or
3. the accounts do not comply with the applicable requirements concerning the form and content of accounts set out

in the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 other than any requirement that the accounts give a
true and fair view which is not a matter considered as part of an independent examination.

I confirm that there are no other matters to which your attention should be drawn to enable a proper understanding of  the
accounts to be reached.

B S Baggaley FCA
Hardings
Chartered Accountants
6 Marsh Parade
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire
ST5 1DU

28th January 2019
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Statement of Financial Activities
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018
 

31/3/18 31/3/17
Unrestricted Total 

fund funds
Notes £ £

Income and endowments from
Donations and legacies 6,982 2,151

Other trading activities 2 11,823 36,201
Investment income 3 4 -

Total 18,809 38,352

Expenditure on
Raising funds 4 11,743 9,904

Other 9,873 8,646

Total 21,616 18,550

Net income/(expenditure) (2,807) 19,802

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 43,033 23,231

Total funds carried forward 40,226 43,033

The notes form part of these financial statements
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Balance Sheet
At 31st March 2018
 

31/3/18 31/3/17
Unrestricted Total 

fund funds
Notes £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 7 10,774 5,139

Current assets
Cash at bank 29,872 38,314

Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year 8 (420) (420)

Net current assets 29,452 37,894

Total assets less current liabilities 40,226 43,033

Net assets 40,226 43,033

Funds 9
Unrestricted funds 40,226 43,033

Total funds 40,226 43,033

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 28th January 2019 and were signed on its  behalf
by:

M J Clayton -Trustee

The notes form part of these financial statements
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Notes to the Financial Statements  
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018
 
1. Accounting policies

 
Basis of preparing the financial statements
The financial statements of the charity, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared  in
accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement  of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the  Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January  2015)',
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic  of
Ireland' and the Charities Act 2011. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical  cost
convention.

Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the charity has entitlement to the funds,  it
is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably. 

Expenditure
Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing  the
charity to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement  and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and  has
been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be  directly
attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use  of
resources. 

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated  useful
life.

Taxation
The charity is exempt from tax on its charitable activities. 

Fund accounting
Unrestricted funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted funds can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objects of the charity.  Restrictions
arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for particular restricted purposes.

Further explanation of the nature and purpose of each fund is included in the notes to the financial statements. 

Hire purchase and leasing commitments
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line  basis
over the period of the lease.

2. Other trading activities

31/3/18 31/3/17
£ £

Fundraising events 1,896 3,979
Room hire 993 820
Sponsorship - Screwfix Wincanton 4,546 28,133
Exercise 757 787
Tai Chi 934 846
Other income 2,697 1,636

11,823 36,201
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018
 
3. Investment income

31/3/18 31/3/17
£ £

Deposit account interest 4 -

4. Raising funds
 
Raising donations and legacies

31/3/18 31/3/17
£ £

Support costs 5,340 3,875

5. Trustees' remuneration and benefits

There were no trustees' remuneration or other benefits for the year ended 31st March 2018 nor for the year  ended
31st March 2017 .

Trustees' expenses
There were no trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31st March 2018 nor for the year  ended
31st March 2017 .

6. Comparatives for the statement of financial activities

Unrestricted
fund
£

Income and endowments from
Donations and legacies 2,151

Other trading activities 36,201

Total 38,352

Expenditure on
Raising funds 9,904

Other 8,646

Total 18,550

Net income/(expenditure) 19,802

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 23,231

Total funds carried forward 43,033
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018
 
7. Tangible fixed assets

Plant and
machinery

£
Cost
At 1st April 2017 7,754
Additions 8,330

At 31st March 2018 16,084

Depreciation
At 1st April 2017 2,615
Charge for year 2,695

At 31st March 2018 5,310

Net book value
At 31st March 2018 10,774

At 31st March 2017 5,139

8. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

31/3/18 31/3/17
£ £

Other creditors 420 420

9. Movement in funds

Net
movement in

At 1.4.17 funds At 31.3.18
£ £ £

Unrestricted funds
General fund 43,033 (2,807) 40,226

TOTAL FUNDS 43,033 (2,807) 40,226

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Movement in
resources expended funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General fund 18,809 (21,616) (2,807)

TOTAL FUNDS 18,809 (21,616) (2,807)
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018
 
9. Movement in funds - continued

 

Comparatives for movement in funds
Net

movement in
At 1.4.16 funds At 31.3.17

£ £ £

Unrestricted Funds
General fund 23,231 19,802 43,033

TOTAL FUNDS 23,231 19,802 43,033

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Movement in
resources expended funds

£ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General fund 38,352 (18,550) 19,802

TOTAL FUNDS 38,352 (18,550) 19,802

10. Related party disclosures

There were no related party transactions for the year ended 31st March 2018.
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Detailed Statement of Financial Activities  
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018

31/3/18 31/3/17
£ £

Income and endowments

Donations and legacies
Donations 6,150 1,121
Grants 500 500
Subscriptions 332 530

6,982 2,151

Other trading activities
Fundraising events 1,896 3,979
Room hire 993 820
Sponsorship - Screwfix Wincanton 4,546 28,133
Exercise 757 787
Tai Chi 934 846
Other income 2,697 1,636

11,823 36,201

Investment income
Deposit account interest 4 -

Total incoming resources 18,809 38,352

Expenditure

Other trading activities
Purchases 1,398 3,094
Physio 5,005 2,935

6,403 6,029

Other
Rent 6,030 6,150
Service charges 576 576
Repairs 572 635
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,695 1,285

9,873 8,646

Support costs
Management
Minibus hire 41 73
Rates and water 343 343
Insurance 595 562
Light and heat 1,896 1,541
Postage and stationery 222 34
Advertising 1,043 -
Sundries 780 656
Carried forward 4,920 3,209

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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STING (Staffordshire Therapeutic
Independent Neurological Group) 

Detailed Statement of Financial Activities  
for the Year Ended 31st March 2018

31/3/18 31/3/17
£ £

Management
Brought forward 4,920 3,209
Sponsorship - 246

4,920 3,455
Governance costs
Accountancy and legal fees 420 420

Total resources expended 21,616 18,550

Net (expenditure)/income (2,807) 19,802

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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Application 

Grant Aid StOlle 
Town Council 

Name of organisation: 

Stone Community Hub 

Purpose of organisation : 
To improve the lives of local residents by providing support and advice, guided by 

the motto "Making Lives Better". Activities fall into 2 main areas: 
1) combating social isolation & its effect on physical/mental health - drop-in sessions, 
people to talk to, crafting & refreshments 

2) reducing poverty & its effects - advice centre, job club, emergency food parcels. 

Amount of grant requested: 

£500 

Reason for grant request: 

Total cost of project (if appropriate) : 

£1 ,100 

Contribution towards the replacement of ageing laptops and their software, used by 
Stone Community Hub staff & volunteers. 

Two laptops need to be replaced in the next year: one used by the IT volunteers 
(with clients, and also for Hub admin including website maintenance, data 

protection records etc.) and one used by the Manager. 

Software licences will be transferred to the new equipment where possible, minimal 
upgrades are expected to be needed. 
The IT laptop has no resale value and will be recycled appropriately, 

With luck, the Manager laptop will be passed on to a Bookkeeping volunteer - we 
are looking for candidates at present. 
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Benefits to Stone residents: 

Adequate equipment allows us to continue providing high-quality services to local 

residents. Our records, and anecdotal feedback, show that the work done by the 
Hub helps a significant number of people - in the last 12 months we have had nearly 
4,000 visits by nearly 500 individuals. Half of these 500 were visiting us for the first 

time. How we help practically: 
- provide/enable social interaction 
- advice, help with form filling, help with making phone calls 

- emergency food parcels 
- computer/internet help 

Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known): 

The rest of the cost will be met from ongoing donations/membership contributions 
and our event-led fundraising activities. 

Is this an "exceptional" request (see notes)? If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: 

N/A 

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding: 

A total of £9,000 was received from the Council between September 2016 and 

February 2018, at £500 per month to support the Hub while it developed a 
sustainable funding model. 
This was very much appreciated, as is councillors' time in attending the ongoing 
Liaison Group meetings with representatives of the Hub. 
As unrestricted funding, the £9,000 was spent across all cost types of which our 
largest (Staff Costs & Premises Rental) account for 72% of the total. 

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable): 

NIA 
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STONE LIONS CLUB 
L. Trigg Esq.,
Clerk to Stone Town Council,
Station Road,
STONE,
ST15 8JP

Y� 11/�. 

 
 

 

7th May 2019 

GRANT APPLICATION - PSA TESTS 24th SEPTEMBER 2019 

Please find enclosed our application for a Grant from the Town Council to support our PSA Event 
for Prostate Screening to be held at the Stonehouse Hotel on 24th September. 

I have also included a copy of our Treasurer's Report for May indicating a total of £4,650-32 in our 
Restricted Fund for PSA. Tbis is a combination of a balance from last year plus money received 

· since then until the current date.

I would also like to acknowledge the support we receive from the Nurses at the local Surgeries plus
other areas to enable us to provide this service.

Yours sincerely, 

Joint PSA Organiser, 

Stone Lions Club. 



Grant Aid Stone 
Town Council 

Name of organisation: 

5roA! IF f_,l rp,✓:..S <?_L.,i.<__,8 
Purpose of organ isation: IZ 
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Amount of grant requested: 

£~00---
Reason for grant request: 

Tota l cost of project (if appropriate) : 
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Benefits to Stone residents : 
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Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding : 

Statement of support from Council appointed representative (if applicable): 
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Treasurer's monthly report 
Charity Account 

Balance last month 

Transactions since 
Mobility donations 
Donations received 
Mobility expenses ,. 
Curry Night 

Peace Poster Competition 
Current balance 
Commitments 

162.50 
0.00 

-398.68 
547.00 

-15.95 

PSA Restricted fund 
Charity Account funds available 

-4,650.32 

3C's Account 
Balance last month 

Transactions since 

Income 

Prizes 

Current balante 
Commitments 

Prizes 5 x £130 
3C's Account funds available 

Total Charity funds available 
This figure excludes the PSA fund 

Admin Account 

Balance last month 
Transactions since 

Tail twister 
Charter Night 
Award engraving 

Current balance 
Commitments 

Zone account 
Room Hire 3 mths 
Tail Twister 

Ad min - _estimated year end balance 

Balance on 1 July 2018 was £622.75 

XI0000087 .xis 

0.00 
-130.00 

-650.00 

26.60 
-24.69 

-22.95 

-283.00 
-84.00 

50.00 

Month_: May 2019 

12,198.01 

12,492.88 

for Sept 2019 

7,842.56 

3C's chegues not y_e 
2,520.50 Month No Winner 

Mar . 58  
Mar 191  

Apr 29  

2,390.50 Apr 18  
Apr 183  

Apr 78  
1,740.50 

9,583.06 

783.33 

762.29 

445.29 

07/05/2019 



Grant Aid 
Town Council 

Name of organisation: 

Stone Rugby Union Football Club (Junior and Mini 

Section) 

Purpose of organisation: 

To provide opportunities for members of the local community to get active and develop a love of sport through 

playing, coach ing or volunteering to support the game of Rugby Union. 

To grow new junior, mini and ladies teams so that more local people are able to become part of a developing and 

forward thinking community led rugby club. 

Amount of grant requested : £500.00 Total cost of project (if appropriate): £2,000.00 
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Reason for grant request: 

Since its foundation in 1990, Stone Rugby club has maintained a strong senior team, with many of the original 

members still being actively involved. The club was originally set up by residents of Stone, who enjoyed playing 

rugby and wanted to partake in their sport without having to travel to other areas. Since the club's inception the 

Senior Team have enjoyed playing weekend friendly matches against other local clubs and developed a renowned 

reputation for upholding the core values of the game. The values of Teamwork, Respect, Enjoyment, Discipline and 

Sportsmanship - Values which are at the heart of Stone RUFC and embedded within all members and players. 

In January 2018 Stone RUFC recognised a local need and relished the opportunity to widen the membership of the 

club by developing a new junior and mini section and a lad ies team. In just a short space of time the Club Leadership 

Committee has ambitiously reconstituted and recruited a strong and extremely popular Under 16's and Under 15's 

team, a growing ladies team, "The Mini Grubbers" for the under 7's and is starting to recruit players for under B's, 
under lO's and under 13's teams. Although enjoying these early successes the club is also cautious to grow with 

care, actively recruiting and training six new volunteer coaches, a fully qualified referee and engaging with parents 

to complete first aid, catering and safeguarding courses. This has enabled Stone RUFC to become a fu lly accredited 

member of the Rugby Football Union (RFU) in March 2019. 

When the next season starts in Autumn 2019 the new thriving junior sections are hungry to build further on their 

impressive first season and wish to register and take part in the Midlands Rugby League. The increased professional 

status of Stone RUFC will necessitate the club to facilitate the provision of post-game catering for both the home 

and the away team players. Stone RUFC and the junior teams have been ambitiously fund raising over the last 

twelve months investing resources into developing the pitch and external flood lighting to bring it up to a sufficient 

standard to become an accredited club however this has restricted the necessary and now urgently required 

development of the catering facilities . 

This grant request is to facilitate the purchase of an outdoor kitchen and catering preparation stand (see 

attachment) that would not only facilitate the club to meet RFU requirements of providing junior players with a 

postgame nutritious hot meal it would also enable the club to cater for spectators and at fund raising events 

therefore generating an income stream to support future sustainabi lity. Currently there are no cooking facilities on 

site that would meet food safety regulations. It is anticipated that on match days up to 500 players and spectators 

will visit the club with these figures are set to increase as new players join the club and the number of team age 

ranges in the junior section increases. 

Benefits to Stone residents: 

There are many benefits to local Stone residents for Stone Town Council to support this grant request. Stone RUFC 

Club is run by local volunteers and unites members of all ages within the community to work together to become an 

active part of a club which promotes a highly inclusive sport that has a very special culture, ethos and set of values. 

Nationally rugby is a popular sport with a very integral set of values, values that support players to be active and 

contributory citizens within society throughout their lives. The inclusiveness and values driven basis of the game is 

also bringing together young people and their parents from across the community, from different schools and 

cultures therefore supporting the development of increased levels of community cohesion. 

Playing in a team sport like rugby is supporting our local young people between the ages of 13-18, those most at risk 

of causing anti-social behaviour to be positively active and occupied. Many older members of our junior teams are 

also volunteers themselves, coaching the younger players and positively role modelling the values of the game. It is 

also well evidenced that engaging in competitive sports supports young people to develop self-confidence, reliance, 

and emotional well-being whist reaping the positive impacts on both physical and mental health. 

The club's new relentless focus to develop the junior, mini and ladies teams is enabling more local adults, young 

people and children to live a healthier and more active life style. Currently the club has 80 new junior and mini 

members and 15 female players with numbers growing week on week. The junior coaches are also facilitating free 

taster sessions in local schools to widen opportunities for local school children to try the sport and hopefully 
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increase their desire to play rugby outside of curricular PE lessons and go on to join a club. It is envisaged that by 

developing and supporting the growth of a junior section and a ladies team the long term sustainability and 

longevity of Stone RUFC will be enjoyed by the residents of Stone for many years to come. 

Stone RUFC is actively looking and welcoming new members and players of all ages therefore the availability to play 

in a team or engage in voluntary activities across a wide range disciplines are opportunities that are open for the 

benefit of all residents in Stone. 

Other sources of funding secured or being explored (with amounts where known): 

Parents and Committee Members professionally qualified in the commercial building, electrical and plumbing trades 

have committed to installing the outdoor kitchen within a permanent, secure and lockable outdoor structure for no 

cost other than their time which will be unpaid and voluntary. 

£1500.00 secured through self-fundraising activities the previous year to purchase the wooden catering hut. 

Additionally the players and parents plan to hold fund raising events throughout the year to cover the cost of team 

playing strips. Local businesses have also been approached and secured to be kit sponsors. 

Is this an "exceptional" request (see notes)? If so, please explain why the Council should treat it as an exception: No 

Grants awarded by the Council in the last two years, and the uses made of the funding: Not previously applied 

Reviewed and updated June 2018 Page 3 



. ___ ) 
"_;;) 

STONE RUFC - STONE COUNCIL GRANT APPLICATION JUNE 2019 
Outdoor Kitchen Example: 

i\ =~= ---·11~ 
,.;.,,,.,,,,_·,!'-

Chck to view larger uriage and other views 

> 

@ Have one to sell? Sell it yourself 

GAS BBQ BARBECUE OUTDOOR KITCHEN STAINLESS STEEL 5 
BURNERS SIDE BURNER 

A 1 viewed per hour * * 1 pro<Juct ranng I Wnte a review 

• 

Cond1t1on. 

Quantrty 

New 

4 available 
~ 

£573.99 
From £28 per month ror 24 months 

Buy it now 

Add to basket 

o Add to watch list 

eBay Money Back Guarantee 
We'll make sure you get this item or get your money bac!<. ~ 

Click & Collect Limited quantity remaining 

Collection- Click & Collect - Select store at checkout. 

Postage- Free Economy Delivery I see details 
Jlem location Nelherlands OJ , Unt'.ed Kingek>m 

Posts to United Kingdom See exdusions 

Delivery· Estimated by Wed. 12 Jun. O 

Payments· PuyPol Processed 
Oy PayPal 

30-day returns 

~ = ~From £28 per month for 24 months. see payment information 

c,.NYW\N Get an instant price to collect this item 

Returns. 30 days refund, buyer pays return postage I See details 



Stone Town Council – Annual Public Meeting 
 

Minutes of the meeting held in St Michael’s Suite,  
Frank Jordan Centre, Lichfield Street, Stone, on Tuesday 16 April 2019 

 
 
PRESENT: 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Mrs K. Green in the Chair and 
Councillors: Mrs C. Collier, G. Collier, J. Davies, I. Fordham, M. Green, Mrs J. Hood, 
R. Kenney and A. Osgathorpe 
Also present were 2 residents of Stone parish and 1 member of the public 
 
 

  
Prior to the meeting, The Town Clerk provided a short briefing on the key 
provisions relating to the conduct of Annual Public Meetings under the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

APM19/001 Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors:  Mrs J. Farnham, T. Jackson, P. Leason 
and M. Shaw  
 

APM19/002 Declarations of Interest 
 
None received 
 

APM19/003 Minutes 
 
RESOLVED 

a) that the Minutes of the Annual Public Meeting held on the 17 April 2018, 
copies having been circulated, be signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 
 

APM19/004 Annual Report of Stone Town Council 
 
The Town Mayor, Councillor Mrs Green, welcomed everyone to the meeting and 
presented her Annual Report (Appendix 1). 
 

APM19/005 Reports from Town, County, Borough Councillors and Members of Other 
Organisations 
 
County Councillor Mrs J. Hood reported on the work she has been involved in 
during the previous year which included the following issues and achievements: 
 

• One way system along Church Street – this highway improvement has 
been completed.  



• Congestion caused by on street vehicular parking in Diamond Way – The 
County Highways Department will be arranging the installation of double 
yellow lines, to be painted imminently. 

• Walton roundabout – Work has been programmed to clear the gullies at 
the roundabout in order to remedy the flooding that has regularly 
occurred there. 

• The Granville Terrace Residents Association has raised an issue with 
lighting columns which have been found to be the responsibility of Eon 
(lighting columns require painting) and not the responsibility of the 
Highway Department.  

• Radford Street at the junction with Northesk Street – Road surface 
repairs are programmed to be undertaken.  

• The Avenue – The surface of this road is going to be patched where 
necessary and then surface dressed. 

• Splitter Island at Christchurch Way – County officers are investigating 
how removal of the splitter island may reduce traffic congestion.  

• A Defibrillator previously earmarked for the library has now been 
installed between Home & Colour and Regent Travel to provide a life 
saving device at both ends of the town.  

• The County Council has decided following public consultation that School 
Crossing Patrol services will continue to be financed by the County 
Council, which is welcome news. 

• County Councillor Mrs Hood has been allocated an additional £30,000 for 
use on highway related issues in Stone. She has been contacted by many 
residents who have raised concerns. 

 
Councillor Mrs Hood thanked Stone Town Council for its support of her through 
the previous two years.  
 
On behalf of everyone, Councillor Mrs Hood expressed her sadness at seeing 
Councillor Mrs Green leave her role as Town Mayor and complimented her on the 
fabulous job she has done.    
 

APM19/006 Questions or Matters Raised by Residents 
 
The following Issues were raised by members of the public: 
 

• Although Stone has improved dramatically, the town’s primary care 
medical facilities are inadequate (there are too few), given the size of the 
town.  
 

• The bus stop situated outside Weatherspoon in Granville Square was 
reported as being in a poor condition. 
 

• Residents of Trent Close and Trent Court are not permitted to install ‘For 
Sale’ signs at the entrance to this private road in order to advertise their 
homes to passing traffic on Stafford Street. It was suggested that Stone 



Town Council (who manage Crown Meadow) had objected to this 
practice. 

 

• The poor condition of the ‘Old Bowling Green’ and ‘The Maltings’ building 
both on Crown Street, were highlighted as issues that should receive 
attention due to the poor condition of the sites.  

 

• There is a broken handrail leading up to Workhouse Bridge which is once 
again in need of repair.  

 
The Town Clerk advised members of the public that the items raised in the 
minutes of this meeting would be considered at a future meeting of the Town 
Council. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Town Mayor 



Terms of Reference – July 2019   Page 24 

9 WORKING GROUPS (ALL) 

PURPOSE 

9.1 The purpose of each Council working group is to give a level of in-depth 

consideration to specific issues beyond that which would normally be possible in 

larger forums such as a committee or sub-committee, and to make 

recommendations to their parent body (committee or sub-committee) accordingly.  

9.2 In most cases, working groups should operate on a “task and finish” basis. 

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT 

9.3 Working group numbers are not prescribed, but groups are unlikely to be effective 

with less than three or more than five members.   

9.4 Working group members are appointed by the parent body that requires the in-

depth consideration to be undertaken, and may be drawn from the membership of 

the Town Council. 

9.5 The working group or parent body may make recommendations for the co-option of 

non-Councillor members to the working group due to the particular expertise they 

are able to offer. All such appointments will require the approval of the General 

Purposes Committee, and all co-opted members will be required to comply with the 

Council’s code of conduct. 

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN 

9.6 Working groups will determine their own chairmanship arrangements, and need not 

appoint a chairman or vice, however a Councillor member of the group who is also a 

member of the parent body should be identified as having the responsibility to 

report back to the parent body on the work of the group. 

QUORUM 

9.7 As working groups have no decision making powers, there is no requirement for 

quoracy. 

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE WORKING GROUP 

9.8 Any member of the Council who is not a member of a working group may attend a 

meeting and may speak on any item if invited by the group.  Such a member should 

not take part in the formulation of the group’s recommendations. 

9.9 The requirements of the Council’s Code of Conduct will apply to everyone present at 

a meeting, whether members of the working group or not.  
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ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

9.10 Working group meetings will not be open to the public.  

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 

9.11 Working groups will arrange their own meeting timetable, in order to meet any 

reporting requirements placed upon them by their parent body.  

AGENDA AND PROCEEDINGS 

9.12 The calling of meetings, booking of venues, preparation of agendas and minutes etc. 

will not be undertaken by the Town Council’s staff.  Attendance of Town Council 

staff at working groups will be on an exceptional basis, if their expertise may be 

required to inform the group’s discussions.   

9.13 There is no requirement for either a formal agenda or minutes, but if a working 

group wishes to prepare these it will be a matter for the group’s members.  Working 

group minutes will not form part of the official minutes of the Council. 

9.14 The provisions of the Council’s Standing Orders for Business shall not apply to 

meetings of working groups.  

REPORTING 

9.15 Working groups have no powers to make any decision or to act in any way on behalf 

of the Council. 

9.16 At each meeting of its parent body, the nominated representative of each working 

group will be expected to report on the work of the group, and to present any 

recommendations.  Such recommendations will not be considered by the parent 

body without a full written report circulated with the meeting agenda and setting 

out the nature of the recommendations and their implications for the Council.  

FUNCTIONS 

9.17 The function of each working group is to give a level of in-depth consideration to 

specific issues beyond that which would normally be possible in larger forums such 

as a committee or sub-committee, and to make recommendations to their parent 

body accordingly. 

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER WORKING GROUPS 

9.18 Where the terms of reference of individual working groups my overlap, it is the 

responsibility of the parent body to provide clarification. Where this overlap applies 

to working groups appointed by different parent bodies this responsibility will fall to 

the General Purposes Committee. 
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Les Trigg

From: Joe Wilson <Joe.Wilson@hs2.org.uk>
Sent: 11 June 2019 14:11
To: Les Trigg
Subject: HS2 PHASE 2A (WEST MIDLANDS TO CREWE) - COMMUNITY AND BUSINESS FUNDS

Dear Les  
 
As you are aware, we are currently seeking permission from Parliament to build and operate Phase 2a (West Midlands 
to Crewe) of High Speed Two (HS2). We expect to secure parliamentary approval by the end of this year. 
 
Once the Parliamentary stage of the project is complete, we will commence initial, preparatory work on the railway. We 
will also launch two funds, dedicated to communities and businesses disrupted by the construction of Phase 2a: 
 
•             The Community and Environment Fund (CEF) and 
•             The Business and Local Economy Fund (BLEF)  
 
These funds are intended to provide benefits to communities that can demonstrate they are affected by the 
construction of HS2. They are over and above the mitigations and statutory compensation arrangements that have 
already been committed. £5 million has been allocated to the funds for communities affected by Phase 2a of the 
railway.  
 
The funds for Phase One have been open to applications since March 2017, there have been 57 successful applications 
so far, which have delivered a range of benefits for local businesses and communities disrupted by Phase One 
construction. Information about these can be found in the following link: 
https://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/hs2funds/pages/hs2-community-and-business-funds-project-map   
 
Although applications will not invited until Royal Assent of the P2a Bill we recommend that you review the Phase One 
Funds website to see how the Funds currently operate, as it is envisaged that the Phase 2a Funds will be managed in the 
same way, once live. 
 
We would also be happy to meet you to discuss the funds in further detail. Please note that any discussions at this stage 
would be about the general process and scope of the funds, helping you to consider whether there may be any 
opportunities for your community in future. Individual applications will be assessed by a separate grant management 
body once the funds are live, and it is important for us to maintain the independence of that process.    
 
I hope you find this message helpful and please do not hesitate to contact me if you would like to discuss further. 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Joe Wilson | Phase 2a - Stakeholder and Community Engagement Manager (Community Areas 2 & 3) | HS2 
Ltd              

Mobile: 07468 707809 | joe.wilson@hs2.org.uk | hs2instaffordshire.co.uk 

Contact our HS2 Helpdesk team all day, every day of the year by:  

Freephone 08081 434 434 | Minicom: 08081 456 472 |Email: HS2enquiries@hs2.org.uk  

Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn 
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High Speed Two (HS2) Limited, Two Snowhill, Snow Hill Queensway, Birmingham, B4 6GA | www.gov.uk/hs2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This email is scanned and cleared by Websense. HS2 Ltd is registered in England and Wales. Registration Number 
06791686, Registered office High Speed Two (HS2) Limited, Two Snowhill, Snow Hill Queensway, Birmingham, B4 6GA, 
England. The information contained in this e-mail is confidential and may also be subject to legal privilege. It is intended 
only for the recipient(s) named above. If you are not named above as a recipient, you must not read, copy, disclose, 
forward or otherwise use the information contained in this email. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify 
the sender (whose contact details are within the original email) immediately by reply e-mail and delete the message and 
any attachments without retaining any copies. 



From: Christelow, Andy (E,I&S)
Subject: CONSULTATION: Staffordshire County Council"s draft revised Statement of Community Involvement
Date: 12 June 2019 13:44:28

I write to invite you to comment on Staffordshire County Council’s draft revised
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI). 
The document explains how we will consult with people and organisations when
we are preparing planning policies or processing planning applications. Our
current SCI was adopted in 2014 and needs to be reviewed to take account of
changes in legislation and the approach to planning.
The Draft Revised Statement of Community Involvement provides updated
guidance and a straightforward explanation of the opportunities to become
involved with consultations relating to all aspects of the planning we undertake.
You can make any comments via our consultation website, or alternatively, you
can send comments to Planning@staffordshire.gov.uk .
A series of consultation questions are listed at the end of this document to
guide your response.
All responses must be received by Wednesday 24 July 2019.
We will collate all of the comments received during the consultation period, and
take them into account as we finalise the Statement of Community Involvement
for formal adoption by the County Council.  We anticipate that this will be in the
Autumn of 2019.
Please note: any comments received are open to all to read and to copy.
Copyright restrictions and photocopying charges may apply. If for any reason
you do not want your comments to be made publicly available in this way then
you have the right to withdraw them, in which case we will remove them from our
records and they will not be considered. Also, please note our Privacy Notice.

Consultation Questions:
1. What is your name?
2. What is your organisation?
3. What is your postal address?
4. What is your email address?
5. Did you find the document easy to read and understand?
6. Do you feel that it provides the right level of information?
7. Are you satisfied with the approach to consultation on planning policy?
8. Are there any changes that you would like to see us make?
9. Are you satisfied with the approach to consultations on planning applications?

10. Are there any changes that you would like to see us make?
11. Are you satisfied with the approach to supporting the development Neighbour Plans?
12. Are you satisfied with the approach to keeping the Statement of Community

Involvement up to date?
If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

 
Regards,
 
Andrew Christelow
Senior Planning Officer, Planning, Policy & Development Control,
Staffordshire County Council
 
Tel: 01785 276705
andy.christelow@staffordshire.gov.uk
www.staffordshire.gov.uk
 

mailto:andy.christelow@staffordshire.gov.uk
https://consultation.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/draft-revised-statement-community-involvement-2019/
mailto:Planning@staffordshire.gov.uk
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/aZ/Privacy-Notice.aspx
mailto:andy.christelow@staffordshire.gov.uk
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/


 

Staffordshire County Council

A Connected Staffordshire where everyone can prosper and be healthy and happy

Find out more by visiting the Staffordshire County Council website.

Sign up for free alerts and newsletters straight to your email or mobile phone to receive county
council news and information on topics important to you.

Save time and download MyStaffs mobile app available on Android and iOS

Follow the county council on Twitter, Facebook, LinkedIn and YouTube

Disclaimer

This e-mail (including any attachments) is only for the person or organisation it is
addressed to. If you are not the intended recipient you must let me know immediately and
then delete this e-mail. If you use this e-mail without permission, or if you allow anyone
else to see, copy or distribute the e-mail, or if you do, or don't do something because you
have read this e-mail, you may be breaking the law. 

Liability cannot be accepted for any loss or damage arising from this e-mail (or any
attachments) or from incompatible scripts or any virus transmitted. 

E-mails and attachments sent to or received from staff and elected Members may be
monitored and read and the right is reserved to reject or return or delete any which are
considered to be inappropriate or unsuitable.

Do you really need to print this email? It will use paper, add to your waste disposal costs
and harm the environment.

http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Customer-Alerts/Customer-Alerts.aspx
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Mystaffs
http://twitter.com/StaffordshireCC
http://www.facebook.com/yourstaffordshire
https://www.linkedin.com/company/staffordshire-county-council
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCk2o8SnYpSosduMshvFO8BQ
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Introduction 

Many of us only come into contact with the planning system if we find out about a planning 
application near our homes, but it touches the lives of all of us far more than we may think.  
It shapes where we live, work, shop, and go to school, it also affects how we travel, how 
we obtain the raw materials we need for construction, and how we dispose of the waste 
we all produce. 
 
Staffordshire County Council (‘we’) are responsible for determining planning applications 
for minerals and waste development (e.g. quarries or waste recycling facilities), as well as 
development required to carry out our own services (e.g. development at schools and 
major highway schemes).  We are also required to prepare local development documents 
(e.g. Local Plans) to set out how and where we consider that the area’s needs for minerals 
and waste management facilities should be met. 
 
Whenever we consider a planning application, or produce local development documents 
for our area, we need to consult and engage with people and organisations to gain their 
views.  This Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how we will do that. 
 
Our SCI was first adopted in 2006 and updated in 2014. Regulations which came into 
effect on 6 April 2018 now require local planning authorities to review their SCI at least 
once every five years. 
 
This document is the latest revision of the SCI.  It was prepared in early 2019 to 
incorporate all of the changes that have taken place since 2014 and is now available for 
public consultation between 12 June and 24 July 2019.  If necessary, it will be amended in 
response to the comments received, before being adopted. 
 
The SCI is divided into four sections.  The first looks at how we engage with the public and 
other interested parties when we are producing our Minerals and Waste Local Plans, 
preparing Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs), or reviewing our Local Plans.  We 
refer to all of this as Planning Policy.  The second section looks at how we consult when 
we are determining planning applications. The third section briefly summarises our limited 
role in supporting the development of Neighbourhood Plans, while the final section 
discusses the SCI itself, and the opportunities to be involved in its review. 
 
In addition to anything referred to in this SCI, any consultation or engagement exercise we 
carry out will also have regard to any relevant corporate policies or statutory requirements 
including:  
 

 Equality Act 2010 

 Human Rights Act 1998,  

 Freedom of Information Act 2000 

 Environmental Information Regulations 2004 

 Data Protection Act 2018, including the General Data Protection Regulation 
(GDPR), and 

 The County Council’s Privacy Notices 

  

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/regulation/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/36/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2004/3391/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2018/12/contents/enacted
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/aZ/Privacy-Notice.aspx
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Section 1: Planning Policy 

1. We are required to prepare local development documents (e.g. Minerals and Waste 
Local Plans) to set out how and where we consider that the area’s needs for 
quarries and waste management facilities should be met.  We publish a Minerals 
and Waste Development Scheme (MWDS) which proposes a timetable for 
preparing the plans, and we keep this up to date to reflect any changes.  We have 
to consider the opinions of the people and organisations that might be interested in 
our plan, so we prepare a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) to set out 
how we do this. 

 
2. As we develop our plans we aim to build common ground on the best way forward 

about where, when and how mineral and waste sites are developed. We accept that 
we may never achieve complete consensus.  We hope, however, that greater 
understanding of the issues, and options to tackle them, may help to minimise 
objections as we prepare our planning policies, as well as later when we use those 
policies to determine planning applications.  

 
3. To help people understand what we are doing at each stage in developing a new 

plan, we publish updates on our web site (www.staffordshire.gov.uk/planning) with 
background information that has helped us to make decisions throughout our plan 
making process.  We also publish Annual Monitoring Reports on our existing plans, 
and links to other information available on the internet. 

Who do we consult? 

4. As we develop our plans, we consult a wide range of groups and individuals who 
may be interested.  These include the “specific consultation bodies” / “general 
consultation bodies” specified in in Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, as well as residents, local interest 
groups, local organisations and companies who operate in Staffordshire. 

 
5. You do not need to be invited, or to be a member of a group to respond to a 

consultation. Anyone can comment on our plans during the consultation periods. 
 

  

http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/planning
https://apps2.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/TrimDocProvider/?ID=002/20/20/050673
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/18/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/18/made
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How do we consult at each stage? 

6. Government Guidance on Plan-making sets out how we should prepare our 
Minerals and Waste Local Plans, and who we should consult at each stage. The 
table below shows key stages of preparing a Local Plan and the opportunities to 
make your views known.   

Table 1: Stages of preparing a Local Plan 

Stage What we do How we will consult 

Plan preparation 
At the start of the plan making 
process, we will notify interested 
parties of the subject of the plan 
being prepared, and invite them to 
make representations on what it 
ought to contain.  
(Reg. 18 of 2012 Regulations) 

Gathering evidence. 
Deciding what to look at in the Local 
Plan. 
Developing possible options 
including sites. 
Looking at possible social, 
environmental and economic impacts 
through the Sustainability Appraisal 
(SA) process. 

Consultation is primarily aimed at 
checking that we have got the 
approach right. 
Consultation period to last for a 
minimum of 6 weeks. 
Documents available on our website.  
Also viewable at our main office and 
libraries. 
E-mails or letters sent to relevant 
consultees and anyone who has 
asked to be involved. 

Draft Plan 
This is an informal stage so we will 
plan any consultations to try to get 
the best range of opinion without too 
much delay to the plan-making 
process.  
 

Producing the Draft Local Plan. 
Continuing the SA. 

Consultation is primarily aimed at 
ensuring that the draft policies are 
right for Staffordshire. 
Consultation period to last for a 
minimum of 6 weeks. 
Notification of consultation on our 
website, with details of how to 
respond. 
Documents available on our website.  
Also viewable at our main office and 
libraries. 
E-mails or letters sent to relevant 
consultees and anyone who has 
asked to be involved. 
Targeted events may be used where 
these are particularly relevant. 

Publication of the Proposed 
Submission Plan 
(Reg. 19-20 of 2012 Regulations) 

Producing the version of the Local 
Plan that we want the Inspector to 
examine. 
Concluding the SA. 

Consultation is primarily aimed at 
checking the “soundness” of the plan 
and its legal compliance. 
Consultation period to last for a 
minimum of 6 weeks. 
Notification of consultation on our 
website, with details of how to 
respond. 
Documents available on our website.  
Also viewable via the internet from 
our main office and at libraries. 
E-mails or letters sent to relevant 
consultees and anyone who has 
asked to be involved. 
All representations will be submitted 
to the Inspector for examination 
along with the Draft Local Plan. 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/18/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/19/made
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Formal decision making:   
Submission Stage 
(Reg. 22 of 2012 Regulations) 

The Council will send its “submission 
version” of the Local Plan to the 
Planning Inspectorate, together with 
supporting documents, final 
Sustainability Appraisal report, and 
all formal representations received at 
this stage. 

 

Independent Examination 
(Section 20 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 
modified by Section 112 of the 
Localism Act 2011) 
(Reg 24 of 2012 Regulations) 

An independent Inspector will be 
appointed to examine the Local Plan.  
The Inspector will decide on the 
issues to be considered, who should 
be involved. 
The Inspector will produce a report 
and may recommend modifications 
to the Local Plan to make it sound.  
These may require additional 
consultation. 

Inspector will decide on the length, 
scale and nature of any public 
consultations that may be required. 
Inspector’s report and all proposed 
modifications will be published on our 
website.  Also viewable via the 
internet from our main office and at 
libraries. 
 

Adoption 
(Reg 26 of 2012 Regulations) 

Council resolve to adopt the Local 
Plan and publish an adoption notice.  
There is then a 6-week period for 
legal challenges if anyone feels that 
the process has not been carried out 
properly. 

“Adoption statement” published with 
the Local Plan. Where they have 
requested it, respondents to the 
Local Plan will be notified when it is 
adopted. 
 

Consultation stages for SPDs 

7. In addition to the Minerals and Waste Local Plans, we may also produce 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) from time to time. Government 
guidance on ‘Plan-making’ explains their role as a material consideration in decision 
making.  They go through a simpler process, with one period of consultation prior to 
adoption, as summarised in the table below. 

Table 2: Stages of preparing SPDs 

Stage What we do How we will consult 

SPD preparation Gathering evidence. 
Drafting the SPD / Guidance. 

Where appropriate, seeking initial 
views from interested parties. 

Public Consultation 
(Reg 12 & 13 of 2012 Regulations) 

Consult on the Draft SPD. 
Modify the Draft SPD as appropriate. 

Draft SPD available on our website 
with a Consultation Statement.  
Documents also viewable via the 
internet from our main office and at 
libraries. 
E-mails or letters sent to relevant 
consultees. 
Consultation period lasts for a 
minimum of 4 weeks. 

Adoption 
(Reg 11 & 14 of 2012 Regulations) 

Council resolve to adopt the SPD 
and publish an adoption notice. 
There is then a 3-month period for 
legal challenges if anyone feels that 
the process has not been carried out 
properly. 

“Adoption statement” published with 
the SPD.  Copies sent to any person 
who has asked to be notified. 

 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/22/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/20
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/section/20
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/112
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/112
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/24/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/26/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making#statutory-duty-and-the-role-of-plans
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/12/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/regulation/11/made
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How can you access consultation documents? 

8. We publish all of our plan documents on our web site, and only print paper copies 
when it is absolutely necessary.  

 
9. You can use our computers free of charge in the reception area of our offices at 

Staffordshire Place, and at local libraries, some of which are open in the evenings 
and at weekends.  You can find your nearest library on our website, together with 
details of facilities and opening hours. 

 
10. If you need help to view or understand documents or plans, assistance may be 

available in local libraries, and we can make information available in alternative 
formats or languages if required. 

 
11. Finally, if access to the internet is not possible, we can provide paper copies of 

consultation documents on request, though we will normally need to make a charge 
to cover the costs.  We will always let you know the charge in advance. 

How can you make an effective response? 

12. To be effective, a comment should be clearly argued and based on good evidence.  
In the early stages of plan making, we need to be sure that we have considered all 
the relevant options.  We will be happy to hear about other options that should be 
considered, and what people think of the options that we have considered. 

 
13. As we progress through the process, we will narrow down the options to produce a 

preferred strategy, and the scope for change will be more limited. 
 
14. From the publication stage onwards, we can only consider objections that relate to 

whether the necessary processes have been followed in preparing the plan, or 
whether the plan is “sound”. 

 
15. Paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) explains that, 

Plans are “sound” if they are: 
 

• Positively prepared – providing a strategy which, as a minimum, seeks to 
meet the area’s objectively assessed needs; and is informed by agreements 
with other authorities, so that unmet need from neighbouring areas is 
accommodated where it is practical to do so and is consistent with achieving 
sustainable development; 
 

• Justified – an appropriate strategy, taking into account the reasonable 
alternatives, and based on proportionate evidence; 
 

• Effective – deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint 
working on cross-boundary strategic matters that have been dealt with rather 
than deferred, as evidenced by the statement of common ground; and, 
 

• Consistent with national policy – enabling the delivery of sustainable 
development in accordance with the policies in this Framework 

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/leisure/librariesnew/whatsavailable/computers/IN42Surf.aspx
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/leisure/librariesnew/branchlibraries/home.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
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How do we handle responses? 

16. All comments received during the consultation periods will be used to inform the 
subsequent stages of developing the Local Plan. 

 
17. We will normally produce a consultation report summarising all of the comments 

received and setting out how we propose to respond to each of the issues raised.  
 
18. Petitions or standard letters submitted as part of an organised campaign will also be 

acknowledged by e-mail or letter to the sender or main contact, but individual 
signatories will not be acknowledged or recorded. 

 
19. Comments will normally be made available for anyone to see via our website 

(www.staffordshire.gov.uk/planning). 
 
20. We need to collect and maintain some personal data as we consider consultation 

responses.  The way that we do this is set out in our Privacy Notice which is 
available on our website. 

Reviewing Local Plans 

21. Regulation 10A of The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended) requires us to review our Minerals and Waste 
Local Plans, and SCI (refer to section 4) at least once every 5 years from their 
adoption date to ensure that planning policies remain relevant and effectively 
address the needs of the local community. This involves considering any changes 
to national policy, local circumstances or our own strategic priorities. 

 
22. Government Guidance on Plan Making provides more information on how and why 

plan reviews should be carried out, but the approach that we take on each occasion 
will depend on how much change we expect to find.  We may consult with 
interested groups or organisations if we need more information, or we may conduct 
a desk-based assessment using the data that we collect routinely to monitor our 
Local Plans. 

 
23. At the end of each review, we must decide either that our policies: 

 

• do not need updating (in which case we must publish our reasons); or 

• need updating (in which case we must update our Minerals and Waste 
Development Scheme to set out the timetable for this revision and update our 
policies). 

 
24. We will publish the outcomes of our Local Plan reviews on our website, and where 

policy updates are required, we will follow the process set out in Table 1 above. 
  

http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/planning
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/aZ/Privacy-Notice.aspx
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/regulation/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/regulation/4/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making#plan-reviews
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Section 2: Consultation on Planning Applications  

25. As the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority, we are responsible for determining 
planning applications relating to minerals and waste development. We are also 
responsible for determining applications relating to our own developments (e.g. our 
schools and new road improvement schemes). All other types of planning 
application (e.g. housing and commercial development) are dealt with by the 
relevant District/Borough Councils, although they do consult us on certain proposals 
before they make their final decisions.  

 
26. In accordance with legislation, we are obliged to undertake a formal period of public 

consultation before we determine a planning application.  The main consultation 
stages are outlined below, and further information can be found in Planning Practice 
Guidance, specifically the section on ‘Consultation and pre-decision matters’ which 
has links to the relevant legislation. 

Pre-application discussions 

27. We encourage developers to talk to officers before submitting planning application 
and we have introduced a minerals and waste pre-application advice service. 
Charges apply and vary with the level of information provided.  Details are available 
on our pre-application advice web page.  The value of the process is clearly stated 
in paragraphs 39 - 41 of the National Planning Policy Framework and in Planning 
Practice Guidance  ‘Before submitting an application’ 

 
28. We also encourage applicants and landowners to discuss their proposals with the 

local community before submitting planning applications. 
 
29. Early consultation should also be undertaken with our own in-house specialists, 

external consultees such as the Environment Agency and Natural England, Local 
Parish/Town Councils, local residents and any existing site liaison committee.  

 
30. Applicants who do decide to undertake pre-application community consultation 

before submitting a planning application should contact us to discuss the methods 
to be used, and any resulting planning application should include details of this 
process, the results of the consultation exercises and any changes made to the 
proposals as a result of this process.   

 
31. Pre-application consultation does not change the way we consult the public and 

other organisations when we receive a planning application. 

  

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/consultation-and-pre-decision-matters
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/applications/FormsFeesAndAdvice/preapplication/Minerals-and-Waste-Development-Pre-application-Advice-Services-and-Charges-with-effect-from-1-April-2018.pdf
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/applications/FormsFeesAndAdvice/preapplication/preapplication.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/before-submitting-an-application
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How would you find out about a planning application in your area? 

32. In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017, we publicise all planning 
applications that are received and notify any local residents who may be directly 
affected by these proposals. To do this we: 

 

 erect a site notice(s) on or near to the boundary of the application site;  
 

 place an advertisement in the local newspaper when;  
 

o the application is a 'major development’;  
o the application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement, or 
o when additional information is supplied to support an Environmental 

Statement in accordance with the EIA Regulations (Reg. 25)  
o the proposal is a departure from the Development Plan;  
o the proposal affects a Public Right of Way, affects the setting of a Listed 

Building or affects the character or appearance of a Conservation Area;  
 

 publish details of planning applications received on our website; and, 
 

 write to neighbours likely to be directly affected by the proposals. 
 
33. You can use our computers free of charge in the reception area of our offices at 

Staffordshire Place, and at all local libraries, some of which are open in the 
evenings and at weekends.  You can find find your nearest library on our website, 
together with details of facilities and opening hours.  If you need help to view or 
understand documents or plans, assistance may be available in local libraries.  You 
can also view documents at District / Borough Council offices via their Planning 
Register. 

 
34. Finally, if access to the internet is not possible, we can provide paper copies of the 

documents on request; though we will normally need to make a charge to cover the 
costs.  We will always let you know the charge in advance. 

Who do we consult? 

35. We consult a wide range of groups and organisations on all planning proposals by 
e-mail or letter before making a decision. The groups and organisations consulted 
will vary according to the type and location of the development. The detailed 
requirements are set out in legislation, and explained in Planning Practice Guidance  
“Consultation and pre-decision matters”. 
 

36. We maintain a consultee list of all relevant statutory and non-statutory consultees 
who may be consulted on planning applications on our website. 

How should you respond? 

37. Anyone can comment on a planning application: you do not have to wait to be 
asked. 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/15/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/article/15/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/regulation/19/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/regulation/19/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/regulation/20/made
http://apps.staffordshire.gov.uk/CPLand/search.aspx?CurrentApps=Truehttp://apps.staffordshire.gov.uk/CPLand/search.aspx?CurrentApps=True
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/leisure/librariesnew/whatsavailable/computers/IN42Surf.aspx
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/leisure/librariesnew/branchlibraries/home.aspx
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/leisure/librariesnew/branchlibraries/home.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/consultation-and-pre-decision-matters
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/aZ/planningAtoZ.aspx#C
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38. We encourage anyone who wishes to make comments to do so using our on-line 

Comment Form or by email to our Planning Inbox planning@staffordshire.gov.uk.   
 

You can also write to us at: 
 
Planning, Policy & Development Control 
Staffordshire County Council 
2 Staffordshire Place  
Tipping Street 
Stafford 
ST16 2DH 

How long do you have to comment on a planning application? 

39. The consultation period is 21 days; 30 days when the planning application is 
accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) (and a further 30 days when 
additional information is submitted in support of the ES).  The period is extended to 
allow for bank holidays. The requirements are set out in legislation, and explained in 
Planning Practice Guidance ‘Consultation and pre-decision matters’ and the Town 
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 
(Regulation 19).  
 

• 21 days for a planning application; 

• 30 days when the planning application is accompanied by an Environmental 
Statement (ES) (the period is extended to allow for public/ bank holidays); 

• a further 30 days when additional information is submitted in support of the ES 
(the period is extended to allow for public/ bank holidays). 

 
In addition, it is our practice to re-consult and allow a further 14 days in which to 
comment if significant changes are made to any planning proposals which are 
under consideration.  

How do we make planning decisions? 

40. The comments and specialist advice we receive through the notification and 
consultation process are used to help us assess the impact of the development and 
the need for planning conditions to minimise the impact of the development.  
Alternatively, they may be used to identify reasons why planning permission should 
not be granted.  

 
41. Planning applications are either determined by the Planning Committee, or by 

planning officers in accordance with Delegated Powers.  Planning Practice 
Guidance ‘Determining a planning application’ explains that decisions must be 
made in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

 
42. The Planning Committee normally meets every two months. Committee reports are 

published on our website. The Committee follow a number of protocols dealing with 
member’s interests, lobbying, etc.; public speaking arrangements; and site visits.  

mailto:planning@staffordshire.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/consultation-and-pre-decision-matters
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/571/regulation/19/made
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/committee/home.aspx
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/aZ/planningAtoZ.aspx#D
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/determining-a-planning-application
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/environment/planning/policy/thedevelopmentplan/home.aspx
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=137
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These, together with other guidance, are available on the Planning Committee web 
page 

 
43. Public speaking is allowed at Planning Committee and Committee meetings are 

webcast live and archive recording are available for 12 months. 
 
44. For any planning application under consideration the Planning Committee will 

either: refuse it grant it; grant it subject to conditions; or, defer it for a site visit or to 
receive further information or clarification on the proposals.  The Committee will give 
reasons for all its decisions which will be recorded in the minutes and will be made 
available to view via our website - www.staffordshire.gov.uk/planning. 

How do we let people know about our decisions? 

45. We notify all those who made representations on a proposal either in writing, by 
email or in some instances via the local press. 

 
46. All decisions are recorded on the Planning Register held by the relevant 

District/Borough Council.  Copies of decision notices are also published on our on-
line Applications Register. 

 
 

Section 3: Neighbourhood Plans 

47. Neighbourhood Planning gives communities the power to shape, direct and deliver 
sustainable development in their area.  Neighbourhood Plans have to be in general 
conformity with the strategic policies contained in the Development Plan, and that 
includes policies in the Minerals and Waste Local Plans. 

 
48. The County Council has no specific legislative duties in relation to Neighbourhood 

Planning, so the first point of contact for communities interested in preparing a 
Neighbourhood Plan should be their District / Borough Council.  However, we do 
provide consultation responses on strategic matters where policies or allocations 
are likely to have an impact on one or more of our statutory responsibilities. 
 

 

Section 4: Keeping the SCI up to date 

49. As mentioned earlier, regulation 10A of The Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) requires us to review SCI at 
least once every 5 years from the adoption date to ensure that it remains relevant 
and effective in ensuring community involvement at all stages of the planning 
process. 
 

50. We will keep track of any changes in legislation, guidance or local circumstances 
that may affect our SCI, and we will report on these in our Annual Monitoring 
Report. Should significant changes arise, we will consider an earlier review to 
accommodate such changes. 

http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=137
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=137
http://www.staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/planning
http://apps.staffordshire.gov.uk/CPLand/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/regulation/4/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1244/regulation/4/made
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Staffordshire County Council 
Review of Statement of Community Involvement – June 2019 

List of changes from 2014 version. 
 

Title page updated 

Header updated (including identification for public consultation) 

Contents updated 

Original 
Location 

New 
Location 

Change Reason 

Introduction 
– Para. 4 

 Paragraph updated, with minor text edits To reflect full history of reviews and reflect wording of 
latest draft guidance 

Introduction 
– Para. 5 

 Revision of process and dates To reflect the dates associated with the latest review 

Below Para 
5 

 Additional paragraph To introduce the structure of the report 

Introduction 
– Para. 6 

 Rewritten to remove reference to Staffordshire County Council Community 
Engagement Framework 

We no longer have a specific Community Engagement 
Framework 

Bullet list 
below 

 Dates added to all relevant legislation listed. Replace link to “Data Protection Act 
1998” with link to “Data Protection Act 2018, including the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR), the County Councils Privacy Notice” to list of relevant 
legislation.  

For clarity and to reflect changes to relevant legislation 

Numbered 
Paras. 
1. 

 Minor text edits, and inclusion of reference to MWDS For clarity and style 

3  Minor rewording and updated web link for latest Annual Monitoring Report For clarity and style, also because there is no single link 
to all AMRs.  Link to latest AMR provided. 

4 4 Text updated to refer to relevant legislation  
Table below 
4 

N/A Deleted Paragraph above provides links to lists of consultation 
bodies. 

5 N/A Delete paragraph We no longer maintain and publish lists of stakeholders. 
6 5 Minor text edits For clarity and style 
7 6 Web link updated, and paragraph reworded To reflect changes to legislation and guidance 



Staffordshire County Council 
Review of Statement of Community Involvement – June 2019 

Table below 
7. 

Table 
below 6 

Add “including sites” after “possible options”. 
Remove commitment to publish press notices at adoption stage.  Include 
reference to publishing adoption statement with Plan at the adoption stage. 
Add note that respondents will be notified of adoption if they have requested this. 
Minor text changes 

To reflect changes to legislation and guidance, and to 
improve clarity and style 

8 7 Added reference to Government Guidance on Plan Making To provide background information 
Table below 
8 

Table 
below 7 

Add link to guidance on plan making 
Add references to publication of a Consultation Statement at the public 
consultation stage, and an Adoption Statement at the Adoption stage. 
Add note that respondents will be notified of adoption if they have requested this 

For background information 

9 8 Minor text changes For clarity and style 
16 15 Update link and wording of tests of soundness. To reflect changes to legislation and guidance 
17 16 Minor text changes For clarity and style 
Below 19 20 New paragraph added to refer to the way that we process personal data, and to 

provide link to Privacy Notice 
To reflect changes to legislation 

Below 20 21 - 24 New paragraphs inserted setting out how we review Plans To reflect new requirements 
21 25 Minor text changes For clarity and style 
22 26 Updated links and references, and minor text changes To reflect changes to legislation and guidance, and to 

improve clarity and style 
23 27 Updated references and links to Planning Practice Guidance To reflect changes to legislation and guidance 
24 28 Minor text changes To reflect implementation of legislation. 
26 30 Minor text change For clarity 
28 32 References to legislation and web links updated  To reflect changes to legislation and guidance 
29 33 Minor text changes For clarity and style 
Text box 
below 28 

Text box 
below 32  

Regulation number and link updated To reflect changes to legislation and guidance 

Below 32 33 Footnote converted into text paragraph To improve accessibility 
34 39 Added reference and link to relevant legislation 

Revised minimum time to comment on an application submitted with an EIA, 
Added reference to additional time being available if consultation period includes 
bank holidays. 

For clarity, and to reflect changes to legislation and 
guidance 

35 40 Minor text revision For clarity and readability 
36 41 Updated links for Planning Committee, Scheme of Delegation, and Planning 

Practice Guidance, plus minor text revision. 
To reflect changes to reference documents and for clarity 
/ readability 
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Review of Statement of Community Involvement – June 2019 

37 42 Updated links To reflect changes in reference documents 
38  43 Text revised and link added for public speaking protocol. For clarity 
39 44 Minor text revision For clarity and readability 
 46-47 New paragraphs added on Neighbourhood Plans To address full requirements of an SCI 
 48 New paragraph added on reviewing the SCI For clarity 

 



Date Reference Supplier Description Amount Month

01/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 Prism Solutions Analogue line £46.69 May-19

03/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 Stafford Borough Council Rates - STN - May 19 £221.00 May-19

03/05/2019 Elec 19/004 Miscellaneous Additional keys cut £17.70 May-19

03/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 Stafford Borough Council Rates - FJC - May 19 £427.00 May-19

03/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 Stafford Borough Council Rates - Market - May 19 £114.00 May-19

03/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 Stafford Borough Council Rates - Northesk Car Park - May 19 £131.00 May-19

04/05/2019 Elec 19/004 Current Electrical & Property Services Setting up of Marquees April 19 £735.00 May-19

07/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 EE Caretaker's mobile - FJC £24.65 May-19

07/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 EE Caretaker's mobile - STN £24.65 May-19

13/05/2019 Elec 19/004 Trudy Williams Reimbursement for envelopes & card - Civ Dinn £17.06 May-19

13/05/2019 Elec 19/004 KSV Vending Supplies for hot drinks machine £72.34 May-19

13/05/2019 Elec 19/004 West Midlands Employers Subscription 2019 - 20 £230.00 May-19

14/05/2019 Elec 19/004 Stone House Hotel Civic Dinner meals etc £1,271.42 May-19

14/05/2019 Elec 19/004 Miscellaneous 2 x bouquets - outgoing Mayor & Dep Mayor Con £50.00 May-19

14/05/2019 Elec 19/004 Ellis Whittam H & S Services £2,525.00 May-19

14/05/2019 Elec 19/004 Ellis Whittam H & S Services - insurance £19.02 May-19

16/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 Sage UK Ltd Sage Subscription £1,104.00 May-19

17/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/002 Sage Pay Europe Electronic transactions - April 19 £15.00 May-19

20/05/2019 Elec 19/006 British Telecommunications PLC Qtly rent of fire alarm line - FJC £97.30 May-19

20/05/2019 Elec 19/006 Fattorini 8 x collaretes £115.25 May-19

20/05/2019 Elec 19/006 British Telecommunications PLC Qtly rent of fire alarm line - STN £97.30 May-19

20/05/2019 Elec 19/007 Miscellaneous Internal Audit 2018-19 £275.60 May-19

22/05/2019 Elec 19/007 Kristan Green Reim for flowers made again as previous ret by bank £60.00 May-19

22/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/003 British Gas Gas - STN - April 19 £121.76 May-19

24/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/003 British Gas Elec-STN-April 19 £67.49 May-19

28/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/003 Prism Solutions ICT Provision £521.34 May-19

29/05/2019 Elec 19/008 Fattorini Repair to Mayor's pendant £330.75 May-19

29/05/2019 Elec 19/008 Mailing room Cartridge - franking machine £47.95 May-19

31/05/2019 Elec 19/008 Zurich Municipal Insurance premium 01 June 19 - 31 May 20 £6,020.57 May-19

31/05/2019 D/Dbt 19/003 NatWest Bank charges - May 19 £67.29 May-19

Stone Town Council - Non-Cheque Payments

The table includes payments by direct debit, telephone banking and online banking.  It excludes salary and related payments, payments from the

Mayor’s Charity, and transfers between the Council’s bank accounts, which can be seen by any Member on request.  All amounts exclude VAT.

The table below lists non-cheque payments made by the Council in the period since the last report, for the Committee’s information.
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